
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508  as soon as possible.

Did you know? All Peterborough City Council's meeting agendas are available online or via 
the modern.gov app. Help us achieve our environmental protection aspirations and view this 
agenda online instead of printing it. 

AB
CHILDREN AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

THURSDAY 14 MARCH 2019
7.00 PM

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Minutes of the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee Meeting 
Held on 3 January 2019

3 - 10

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is 
published and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the 
expiry of 3 working days after the publication of the decision (not including 
the date of publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is 
received from any two Members of the relevant Scrutiny Committee. If a 
request for call-in of a decision is received, implementation of the decision 
remains suspended for consideration by the relevant Scrutiny Committee.

5. Peterborough School Organisation Plan 2019 And Education 
Organisation Plan 2020

11 - 46

6. Targeted Youth Support Service 47 - 52

7. The University of Peterborough Update Report 53 - 60

Public Document Pack



8. Safeguarding Children And Young People At Risk As A Result Of 
Being Missing From Home, Education Or Care

61 - 82

9. Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations 83 - 86

10. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 87 - 132

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and 
use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. Audio recordings of 
meetings may be published on the Council’s website. A protocol on this facility is available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385

Committee Members:

Councillors: J Goodwin (Chair), S  Bashir, G Casey, A Dowson, A Ellis, M Farooq, D Fower, 
 S Lane,  D Over (Vice Chairman), B Rush and B Saltmarsh

Substitutes: Councillors: J R Fox, A Iqbal, D Jones,  A Shaheed and  J Stokes  

Co-opted Members                                                                                                                                                           
Note: The following Education Co-opted members are Members of the Scrutiny Committee and 
vote when education matters are discussed.
Peter Cantley, Peterborough Diocesan Board of Education
Flavio Vettese, (Deputy Director of Schools), Roman Catholic Church, Diocese of East Anglia
Vacancy, Parent Governor Representative
Vacancy, Parent Governor Representative
Julie O’Connor, Roman Catholic Diocese of East Anglia (sub for Flavio Vettese)
Liz Youngman, Peterborough Diocesan Board of Education (sub for Peter Cantley) 

Non Statutory Co-optees
Alistair Kingsley, Independent Co-opted Member (Non-voting)
Rizwan Rahemtulla, Independent Co-opted Member (Non-voting)
Parish Councillor Susie Lucas, Independent Co-opted Member (Non-voting)
Parish Councillor Junaid Bhatti,  Independent Co-opted Member (Non-voting)

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from  Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

  

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385


MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING 

HELD AT 7PM ON THURSDAY 3 JANUARY 2019
BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH

Committee 
Members Present: 

Councillors D Over (Vice Chairman acting as Chairman),
S Bashir, G Casey, A Dowson,  D Fower, A Ellis, M Farooq, 
D Jones,  S Lane, J Stokes, R Brown, B Saltmarsh
Co-opted Members: A Kingsley,  P Cantley,  F Vettese and Parish 
Councillor S Lucas

Also Present: Councillor Ayres, Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and 
University
Andy Elvin, Chief Executive of TACT

Officers Present: Lou Williams, The Service Director for Children’s Services and 
Safeguarding
Jonathan Lewis, Service Director, Education
Dee Glover, Head Teacher of Peterborough Virtual School
Gary Perkins, Assistant Director Education
Kathryn Goose, Senior Commissioning Manager – CAMHS
Lee Miller, Head of Transformation and Commissioning (Children 
and Maternity)

35.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillor Rush and Councillor Goodwin.  Councillors Brown 
and Stokes attended as substitutes.

36.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND WHIPPING DECLARATIONS 

Councillor Casey declared a non-statutory pecuniary interest in that he was a trustee of Family 
Voice Peterborough, however this would not impact his discussion on the item. There were 
no other declarations of interest or whipping declarations. 

37.  MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING       
    HELD ON 1 NOVEMBER 2018.

The minutes of the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 1 November 
2018 were agreed as a true and accurate record. 

38.    CALL IN OF ANY CABINET, CABINET MEMBER OR KEY OFFICER DECISIONS 

There were no requests for call-in to consider.

3



39.    CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE MENTAL HEALTH & SERVICES

Senior Commissioning Manager, Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) 
Cambridge and Peterborough and the Head of Transformation and Commissioning (Children 
and Maternity) Cambridge and Peterborough introduced the report which provided the 
Committee with an overview of the issues pertinent to Cambridgeshire and Peterborough and 
the changes that have occurred over recent years.

The Committee were advised that revised prevalence mental health data had been received 
and that the new data showed an increased demand to one in eight as opposed to one in ten 
in 2004.

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee debated the report and in summary, key 
points raised and responses to questions included:

● There was no hard evidence to explain why there had been an increase in mental health 
issues.

● Officers were not aware of any national studies or research being carried out into why 
there was an increase in mental health issues. Most research concerns the interactions 
and improvements which could have an impact however it could take up to 15 years to 
implement the findings.

● The transformation and resource funds had been invested into specialist services to 
reduce waiting lists. Backlogs had been addressed and patients were now seen for 
assessment within the 18 week target. 

● There had been over 50% increase in investment in children’s mental health since 2015.
● The service in Cambridgeshire was available to young people up to the age of 25 but in 

Peterborough the service was only available up to the age of 18. This was a historical 
provision and funding for 18 – 25 year olds had been provided from the Local Authority 
funds rather than the Clinical Commission Group (CCG). There were no plans to adjust 
the age limit in either county at present.

● There were other mental health services available in Peterborough for 18-25 year olds 
which were slightly different to those available for younger people. Alternative options 
could be considered similar to the Cambridge model.

● Members were surprised that the data source used previously was 14 years old.
● Triage staff (crisis element) received training to ensure all staff had the same baseline 

skills as all came to post with different skills and experiences within the mental health 
arena.

● The purpose of transition support service, which, despite recruitment issues was now up 
to full capacity, was to support 18 year olds when leaving mental health services.

● 18 year olds would access adult services however alternative services were available for 
17 year olds.

● The access targets for children and young people with mental health needs were set to 
double by 2021. The increased target would be met by ensuring pathways were as smooth 
as possible, and the team were working closely with Mental Health & Emotional Wellbeing 
Service (CHUMS). Targets which increased year on year were currently being met and 
provisions were in place to meet the increased demand.

● CHUMS provided low level early intervention support, such as one to one group 
workshops, recreational support for young people, resilience, anxiety and behavioural 
groups, which also offered support to parents. This included recreational groups 
associated with sport and music. 

● The Keep Your Head Application was managed by Centre 33 with an investment of 
£14,000 per annum to manage and update the website. This service had originally set out 
to support young people, however it had evolved into a website increasingly accessed by 
professionals. The focus would remain on reaching young people. Data on the website 

4



usage would be available at the next meeting in January 2020, however Members were 
asked to note that each time the website was updated, this data was reset.

● The Blue Ice App data would be available after the next quarterly meeting with CHUMS 
as it was only introduced in the autumn term.

    AGREED ACTIONS:

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to 
note the investment, improvements and challenges regarding the provision of children and 
young people’s mental health support services. 

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee also AGREED that:

The Senior Commissioning Manager (CAMHs) would provide the Committee with the details 
outlining the training undertaken by staff to ensure that they could support both children and 
adult mental health issues.

 
40.    CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE IN CARE UPDATES – PETERBOROUGH VIRTUAL

SCHOOL

Head Teacher of Peterborough Virtual School, introduced the report which provided the 
Committee with an update on the progress of Children and Young People in Care on the role 
of Peterborough Virtual School.

Members were advised that some of the data within the report was un-validated and the data 
used for reporting was always almost a year after the SATs and GCSE results were published. 

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee debated the report and in summary, key 
points raised and responses to questions included:

● The Personal Education Plan (PEP) Reviews were conducted each term and this had 
provided the children with an opportunity to be heard before, both during and after the 
review. Children must feel comfortable when talking to a trusted adult and feel they can 
talk in confidence and it was therefore not appropriate to record everything that had been 
discussed. Children were given the opportunity to share their views in a suitable 
environment. The Mind of My Own (MOMO) Application provided children in care with the 
opportunity to record their views online and these were monitored by officers.

● There were currently 334 children in care on role, the number had reduced due to some 
children attaining the age of 18.

● A significant number of children in care were placed outside this authority.
● There were challenges faced in having children in care admitted to academies. This had 

been raised by the National Association of Virtual School Heads as a major issue, with 
the problem set to increase as more schools converted to academies status.

● The Head of Virtual Schools would contact academies to discuss the reasons why a child 
in care should attend that specific school and support was available for both the child and 
the school.

● Designated teachers for CiC would normally attract an increased workload such as 
attendance at PEP meetings which may be a contributing factor to the intake issues 
currently being experienced. 

● The placing of children outside the city was care-needs lead rather than educational-needs 
lead.

● Children in care placed outside the city were likely to have more complex emotional and 
health and well-being needs and placed in a specialist placement or foster care. Children 
in care were placed out of area to secure the most appropriate care for their needs and 

5



Members were given an example in the area of autism. There were only three schools in 
the country specialising in a particular type of autism and learning disability because the 
numbers were so small. 

● Every effort was made to place children within local communities however in a small 
number of cases some CiC were better placed out of the area.

AGREED ACTIONS

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to 
    

1. Note the content of the report in relation to the function of Peterborough Virtual 
School and actions being taken to maintain and improve educational outcomes.

2. Note the actions taken following the inspection of children’s services by Ofsted in 
June/July 2018.

41.    OUTCOME OF OFSTED INSPECTION OF PETERBOROUGH CHILDREN’S SERVICES,
SERVICE DIRECTOR REPORT AND PORTFOLIO HOLDER REPORT

The Service Director for Children’s Services and Safeguarding introduced the report which 
provided Members with an overview of key performance measures within children’s services, 
including information on the action plan introduced following the Ofsted inspection in June and 
July 2018, and updated the Committee on relevant activities and functions completed by the 
Cabinet Member for Children’s Services. 

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee debated the report and in summary, key 
points raised and responses included:

● Performance was currently lower than should be expected for completion of single 
assessments undertaken on time, a target many Local Authorities found difficult to meet. 

● A 20 day checkpoint had been introduced to assist managers when monitoring support 
workers to assist in completing the reports on time. 

● The Front Door safeguarding services had been remodelled jointly with Cambridgeshire.
● There had been a small turnover of social workers in Peterborough.
● The 90% benchmark was considered a stretched target; it will not be easy to achieve 

however it would be difficult to agree to aspire to less.
● Hertfordshire developed the Family Safeguarding Approach and Peterborough, along with 

four other Local Authorities had received government funding through the Innovation 
Programme to copy the model for trial purposes. The government requested five local 
authorities to implement the approach to ensure it could work outside of Hertfordshire. 

A proposal was received and seconded to amend the wording of the Cabinet Member for 
Children’s Services recommendation. A vote was taken on the amendment, which was 
DEFEATED (8 against and 3 in favour).

 
AGREED ACTIONS:

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to:

1. Note the content of the report in relation to performance by children’s social care and 
actions being taken to maintain and improve this in certain areas;

2. Note the content of the action plan following the inspection of children’s services by 
Ofsted in June/July 2018 and the arrangements in place to assure that these were 
completed;

3. Note the work of the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services in carrying out her duties. 

6



4. Receive an update on the progress of the Ofsted action plan within future Service 
Director reports.

42.    EDUCATION ATTAINMENT AT EYFS, KEY STAGE 1, KEY STAGE 2 AND KEY STAGE 4, 
INCLUDING RURAL SCHOOLS AND SCHOOLS CAUSING CONCERN

The Assistant Director Education introduced the report which provided Committee with an 
update on standards of attainment and rates of progress made by children in Peterborough 
Infant, Junior, Primary and Secondary schools in the 2018 Early Years and National 
Curriculum assessments.

The Committee were advised that the final table in Appendix 2 contained incorrect information 
and revised data would be circulated to Committee Members.

The Assistant Director Education provided background information and explained that the 
three largest ethnic groups were White British, White Other and Pakistani Heritage. Members 
were also asked to note that 231 children who were listed as White British also had English 
as an additional language.

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee debated the report and in summary, key 
points raised and responses included:

● The number of children within the Pakistani Heritage group varied between 11-13% within 
the last five years.

● There had been an increase in the number of children in the White Other category however 
this may change over the next few years,

● Members wanted to know the population trends to enable effective planning for future 
educational needs.

● There were a relatively small number of rural schools with more in Cambridgeshire than 
Peterborough. A project was being considered where like schools from both areas had 
been grouped together to help towards improving attainment.

● Some rural schools had a wide catchment area and were predominantly smaller than 
urban schools which could impact outcomes.

● Key Stage result trend comparisons were considered useful, however caution was advised 
when comparing individual years as it was better to consider several years together to 
determine a trend rather than consider one year in isolation.

● A small number of schools had not performed as well as expected. Standard practice in 
these cases would be for an agreement between Peterborough City Council and the 
Regional Schools Commissioner regarding action required. No actions had been issued 
to those schools this year.  Comparative data for these schools could be useful and could 
be made available with the school’s agreement.

● The key stage 4 results were incomplete as not all data was available.
● Members expressed concern that there had been little improvement in standards and 

Peterborough was below the national average with specific issues around reading and 
writing which needed to be improved.

● Reading, writing and English language skills needed improvement. The success at the 
end of Key Stage 2 was largely related to reading for inference.

● Members were advised that several projects were in place to support the improvement of 
educational standards.

● There was an improvement in the number of children prepared for secondary school in 
comparison to 2016.

● Recruitment of high quality teachers was imperative and the local authority could support 
this.

7



● Schools, including academies were encouraged to collaborate to help one another with 
the Council setting groups, however schools were not required to participate. 
Collaborations were also being sought from other local authorities.

● A meeting had taken place at Jack Hunt School with the Muslim Council of Peterborough 
in order to encourage more governors from within the Pakistani community.  This resulted 
in 26 additional governors being appointed. It was also felt that similar governor meetings 
within other communities.

● An English as an Additional Language (EAL) strategy was created in 2013 to drive forward 
the achievement of non-English speaking children and it was time this was reviewed.

● Children were now being prepared to start pre-school. The new framework from 
September 2019 would focus on readiness for each year group to move to the next.

● There were currently six supplementary schools in Peterborough including Polish, Latvian 
and Lithuanian Saturday schools operating across the city with 500 attending the Polish 
Saturday school. The council were keen to develop relationships further and provide 
guidance on safeguarding training and first language GCSEs. Families were also attending 
the Saturday school and they had been encouraged to develop their own association to 
provide resilience. Funding received for Changing our Communities could be directed 
towards the supplementary school offer.

● Some children were linguistically gifted as many may not have spoken English two or three 
years earlier and were now achieving high results. 

AGREED ACTIONS:

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee RESOLVED to: 

1. Note the contents of the report; and
2. Support Elected Members and Officers in their work to support and challenge schools 

to improve standards of attainment and rates of progress for children in Peterborough 
Infant, Junior, Primary and Secondary schools.

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee also AGREED that:

1. The Assistant Director, Education would provide Members with an amended version 
of appendix 2 Key Stage 1 outcomes.

2. The Service Director, Education would invite the Regional Schools Commissioner to a 
future meeting to discuss the interventions being undertaken for schools that had 
caused concerns following the outcome of the Key Stage 1, 2 and 4 results.

3. The Assistant Director, Education would provide the Committee with a confidential 
briefing note about the outcomes of individual rural schools, to accompany the 
aggregated data already supplied, and all schools individual Key Stage 1, 2 and 4 
results. 

4. The Assistant Director, Education would provide performance information about Key 
Stage 1, 2 and 4 results by gender within future reports.

5. The Service Director, Education would organise a seminar for Rural School Governing 
Boards to help support Key Stage 1, 2 and 4 results.  

43.    MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS

The Democratic Services Officer introduced the report which enabled the Children and 
Education Scrutiny Committee to monitor and track progress of recommendations made to 
the Executive or Officers at previous meetings.

8



AGREED ACTIONS:

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee RESOLVED to note the progress made on 
recommendations made to the Executive or Officers and previous meetings.

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee also AGREED that the report due at the 
September 2019 meeting in respect of the un-validated examination data for Key Stages 1, 2, 
4 and 5 from all schools across the City should also include rural Schools.

44. FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

The Committee received the latest version of the Council’s Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions, containing key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or 
individual Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following four months.  
Members were invited to comment on the Forward Plan and where appropriate  identify any 
relevant areas for inclusion in the Committee’s work programme.

Non-Key Decision - Implementation of School Transport Policy for children aged 4 to 
16 years - Members were concerned with the distances pupils travelled to some schools. 
Members were advised no major changes to the policy were proposed.

Expansion and Remodelling of Marshfields School – KEY/11DEC17/03  - Members were 
informed that the need for additional places in special schools was recognised and that 
discussions were ongoing with both Marshfields and Heltwaite schools. Members were also 
advised that proposals would be available in late Spring.

AGREED ACTIONS:

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to 
note the latest version of the Forward   Plan of Executive Decisions.

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee also AGREED that The Service Director, 
Education:

1. Would provide Members with further information about travel distances and school 
catchment areas being reviewed within the School Transport Plan and the School 
Organisation Plan.

2. Would provide information in respect to school place provision for Great Haddon as 
the site developed.

45.   WORK PROGRAMME 2018 - 2019

Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2018 - 2019 and discussed 
possible items for inclusion.

AGREED ACTIONS 

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee RESOLVED to note the work programme for 
2018 – 2019.

The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee also AGREED that the following items should 
be discussed at the next agenda setting meeting, which was due to be held on Tuesday, 8 
January 2019:

9



1. External placements for children with specialist needs and the actions being 
undertaken to provide placements within the City.

2. Shared services with Peterborough and Cambridgeshire for Children’s services and 
plans for the future. 

3. The Regional Schools Commissioner to be invited a future meeting to discuss the 
intervention being undertaken for schools that had caused concerns following the 
outcome of the Key Stage 1, 2 and 4 results.

46.    DATE OF NEXT MEETING

12 February, 2019 Joint Scrutiny of the Budget Meeting
14 March, 2019, Children and Education Scrutiny Committee

CHAIRMAN
7.00pm to 8.55 pm

10



CHILDREN AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM No. 5

14 MARCH 2019 PUBLIC REPORT

Report of: Wendi Ogle-Welbourn (Director People and Communities)
Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Ayres (Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and University)

Contact Officer(s): Clare Buckingham (Strategic Education Place Planning 
Manager CCC and PCC)
Rachael Pinion (Place Planning and Sufficiency Officer 
CCC and PCC)

Tel. 01223 
699779
01223 715694

PETERBOROUGH SCHOOL ORGANISATION PLAN 2019 and EDUCATION 
ORGANISATION PLAN 2020

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM: Strategic Education Place Planning Manager CCC 
and PCC

Deadline date: N/A

   It is recommended that the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee

(a) note the present status and endorse the planned changes, described in this report, of the School 
Organisation Plan 2019 and proposed Education Organisation Plan 2020. 

(b) that the DfE approved changes to school planning areas are reflected in future updates of both plans 

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT

1.1 This report originated at the request of both the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee and 
the Cabinet Member for Education Skills and University.

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1 This report is being presented as un update for the Children and Education Scrutiny
Committee. 

2.2 This report is for the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee to consider under its Terms of 
Reference Part 3, Section 4 - Overview and Scrutiny Functions, paragraph No. 2.1 Functions 
determined by Council :
 

  Education, including

a) University and Higher Education;
b) Youth Service;
c) Careers; and
d) Special Needs and Inclusion.

2.3 This report links to the Corporate Priorities: Improve education attainment and skills and drive 
growth, regeneration and economic development. 

11



2.4 This report links to the Children in Care pledge: Support Children in Care to have a good 
education. 

3. TIMESCALES 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting 

N/A

4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

4.1

4.2

4.3

Statutory Duties 
Local Authorities have the following statutory duties for place planning across the 0-19 age range: 

● to ensure there are sufficient and suitable childcare places for parents to be able to work 
and train (Childcare Act 2006). 

● to provide a school place for every child living in their area of responsibility who is of 
statutory school age and whose parents want their child educated in the state-funded 
sector (Section 14 of the Education Act, 1996).

● to secure sufficient and suitable education and training opportunities to meet the 
reasonable needs of all young people over compulsory school age but under 19 (or under 
25 with a learning difficulty) in their area (Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning 
Act, 2009). 

● to have regard to the need to secure special educational provision for pupils who have 
special educational needs (Section 14 of the Education Act, 1996). 

Planning area amendments
Every year all local authorities are required to complete a School Capacity and Planning (SCAP) 
return to the Department for Education (DfE). This return is used by the DfE to compare the 
overall capacity of our schools against the number of places required based upon our pupil 
forecasts. It forms the basis upon which the DfE allocates basic need capital funding to the local 
authority each year.  

For this return officers assess the number of school places required in individual planning areas; 
which are made up of groups of schools which pupils could reasonably attend. Until this year 
there have been eight primary school planning areas and one secondary local authority wide 
planning area (maps attached as appendices 1 and 2). 

A proposal was submitted to the DfE in November 2018 asking to split the primary rural planning 
area (which currently covers all schools in rural locations), to amalgamate the Fletton/Woodston 
and Stanground primary planning areas and to split the city-wide secondary planning area into 
three new areas (maps attached as appendices 3 and 4). 

These proposals meet the DfE guidance on planning areas and give a truer picture of the 
sufficiency issues across Peterborough. They also take into account the changing education 
landscape in the city as it grows and develops at Hampton, Paston Reserve and Great Haddon. 
The DfE confirmed they approved these changes on 25th February 2019. The new planning areas 
will be used in the next update of the School Organisation Plan and for SCAP 2019.  

2018-2019 School Organisation Plan
The 2018-2019 School Organisation Plan sets out Peterborough City Council’s assessment and 
response to school place pressures for primary and secondary schools across Peterborough (see 
appendix 5 for this report in full). This report is due to be published on the council’s website in 
spring 2019. The key elements are set out below: 

Introduction
Peterborough’s population growth has been significant and sustained since 2001 and is forecast 
to continue over the period of the Local Plan. The council has a statutory duty to provide the 
additional school places required. The focus until now has been on primary places but with these 
larger pupil cohorts reaching secondary school age in the coming years that focus has now 
moved to the secondary schools sector. In addition, new primary school provision will still be 

12



4.4

required in the major urban extensions to the city. The continual population growth means the 
council needs to work strategically and effectively across the Local Authority (LA) maintained 
schools and academies sector to ensure there are enough school places across the city. 

Primary Place Pressures and Responses 
Central: The council has recently been consulted by the sponsor of Gladstone Primary School 
on its proposal to reduce its PAN from 120 to 90. The council has formally recorded that it is 
unable to support a permanent reduction in its Pupil Admission Number (PAN) but is happy to 
support a temporary reduction in reception year from 120 to 90 until and including the academic 
year 2022/23. 

Fletton, Woodston and Stanground: Birth data shows the number of children in the area will soon 
exceed the places available. Woodston Primary School is currently being expanded to 90 places 
per year group to be ready for September 2019. There is currently an expansion of Oakdale 
Primary School underway.

North: There is a large housing development under construction at Paston Reserve which will 
require a primary school. A free school bid was submitted and approved as part of the wave 12 
programme and an opening date of September 2022 has been agreed with the DfE. 

Hampton: There are no spare places in any of the existing Hampton primary schools. Hampton 
Lakes, approved in the wave 12 free school programme, will open in temporary accommodation 
in September 2019. It is anticipated the permanent building will be completed in late spring 2020. 
This will be located in the new Hampton Lakes development east of the A15. An application for 
a primary school at Hampton Gardens has been submitted in the wave 13 free school programme 
and a decision is anticipated in spring 2019. 

Secondary Place Pressures and Responses 
The total Peterborough secondary roll in Year 7 to Year 11 has been on an upward trend for a 
number of years. It increased from 11,074 in 2010/11 to 12,246 in 2017/18. This is forecast to 
continue; with numbers expected to reach 16,236 in 2023/24.

North 
There is an expansion project planned at Ken Stimpson. This has planning permission and is 
expected to reach financial and commercial close in March 2019 with the proposed contractor 
due to start on site in May 2019.

Central 
Jack Hunt has been expanded by one Form of Entry (FE) from September 2018. 

The provision of a new secondary school in Paston Reserve is required to serve the 5FE demand 
from the new housing developments and will also provide an additional 3FE to meet the demand 
arising from the central area of the city. A proposal to establish this school has been submitted 
by the 4Cs Trust to the DfE as part of the wave 13 free schools programme. A decision is 
expected in the spring of 2019. 

South
Ormiston Bushfield Academy and Nene Park Academy have been expanded to take two addition 
FE into Year 7 from September 2018.

Proposed changes to the 2019-2020 School Organisation Plan 
Officers recommend that the next draft of the School Organisation Plan is renamed 
Peterborough’s Education Organisation Plan and is increased in scope to include place planning 
for: 

● Early Years 
● Schools 
● Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) provision 
● Post 16 provision

13



The benefits of this are listed below: 
● The plan will outline a strategic, clear and cohesive approach to place planning for all 

young people living in Peterborough and will ensure every community and age group is 
considered. 

● The plan will cover the council’s responses to all its statutory place planning duties and 
ensure that any linkages can be more easily exploited in the planning of places. 

● Due to changes in legislation the council is now working with a variety of different 
organisations to commission school places (e.g. the DfE, Academy Trusts and the 
Regional Schools Commissioner). It would be invaluable to have a central, public 
document with which to signpost these organisations so they can clearly understand the 
Peterborough context and the full range of pressures facing the city. 

● The new format will be in line with Cambridgeshire County Council’s Education 
Organisation Plan. The same team of Officers will write the plans for both councils. This 
will ensure consistency of approach, save time and avoid unnecessary duplication. 

The first Peterborough Education Organisation Plan is due to be published in October 2019; this 
will align the timetable with Cambridgeshire County Council’s publication. After this it will be 
updated on an annual basis. 

5. CONSULTATION

5.1 Planning Area Amendments 
The DfE have approved the planning area amendments. 

2018-2019 School Organisation Plan Key Features
Officers have ongoing meetings regarding place planning with a number of parties including the 
DfE, the Peterborough Partnership of Secondary Schools, Primary Heads Cluster Groups and 
Academy Trusts. 

2019-2020 Education Organisation Plan 
The changes to the Education Organisation Plan have been proposed by officers to ensure 
consistent practices and planning approaches are carried out across the two councils. Internal 
teams potentially affected by the changes (e.g. Business Intelligence in Cambridgeshire and 
Early Years in Peterborough) have been consulted. 

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT

6.1 The anticipated outcome of this report and attached appendices is that the council has an up to 
date understanding of place planning and the present pressures and challenges. Understanding 
these pressures will support members when undertaking capital planning as part of the wider 
business planning process for the council.

It will also assist members understanding of officers reasons for changing the report format for 
2019/20. 

7. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION

7.1 2018-19 School Organisation Plan 
The challenge of meeting the demand for school places remains a constant pressure. Since the 
School Organisation Plan was submitted to Children and Education Scrutiny Committee in March 
2018 both the demographic forecasts and the capital programme have been updated. This 
update specifies the changes since and outlines the actions needed moving forward and will once 
again support the annual review of the capital programme.

2019-20 Education Organisation Plan 
Changing the format of the report in the way suggested will allow for an open and informative 
public document detailing in one place the council’s place planning strategy for all the young 
people of Peterborough. 

14



8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 Do Nothing: The consequences of not continually reviewing 0-19 education and childcare places 
will mean that the council runs the risk of not being able to provide sufficient places and will be 
in breach of its statutory duties. 

9. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

9.1 Specific funding is allocated within the medium term financial strategy (2018/19 to 2020/21) for 
expansions at Oakdale (£4,150,000), Parnwell (£2,880,000), Woodston (£4,050,000), Jack Hunt 
(£3,742,000) and Ken Stimpson (£8,300,000) schools. 

Hampton Lakes Primary School (£8,056,000) and Paston Reserve Primary School (£8,037,000) 
are both approved free schools and capital funding will be provided by the Education & Skills 
Funding Agency (ESFA). If for any reasons these free schools do not proceed to implementation 
there will be a significant impact on the council’s capital programme. 

An application for Paston Reserve Secondary School (£25,839,000) has been submitted into 
Wave 13 of the free school process. If the Wave 13 application is unsuccessful the council would 
need to confirm its approach to delivering the places and the budget. There is no budget currently 
included in the capital programme for the delivery of this secondary school

The future capital programme and existing schemes are being reviewed in light of the financial 
pressures the council is facing and different options may need to be considered.

Legal Implications

9.2 The legal implications are that the council is responsible for the provision of sufficient Early Years, 
primary and secondary mainstream school, SEND and post-16 places.

Equalities Implications

9.3 None 

Rural Implications

9.4 None

Other Relevant Implications

9.5 School Organisation Plan 2018-19 
Continually reviewing school place planning ensures that Children in Care will be able to access 
a school place in the city. 

Education Organisation Plan 2019-20
Planning places across the 0-19 age range ensures that Children in Care and Care Leavers will 
be able to access childcare, school places, SEND places and Post-16 places as required. 

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

10.1 School Organisation Plan 2018-2019

11. APPENDICES

11.1 Appendix 1: Current primary planning areas
Appendix 2: Current secondary planning area
Appendix 3: Proposed primary planning areas 

15



Appendix 4: Proposed secondary planning areas
Appendix 5: School Organisation Plan 2018-2019

16



17



T
his page is intentionally left blank

18



G

GG

G
&

G

G

&

G

G

G

G

G

Greater Peterborough UTC

City of Peterborough Academy

The Thomas Deacon Academy

Hampton College

Hampton Gardens

Stanground Academy

Nene Park Academy

Ormiston Bushfield Academy

The King's (Cathedral) School

Jack Hunt School

Queen Katharine Academy

Ken Stimpson Community School

Arthur Mellows Village College


Peterborough City Council: Secondary Schools and Ca tchments (where applicable)

Date: 26/10/2018Scale (at A3): 1:52868 © Crown copyright and database rights 2018 OS 10002 3205
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions : https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/terms-and-discl aimer

gr427By:Centred at: 517875,300664 

19



T
his page is intentionally left blank

20



21



T
his page is intentionally left blank

22



Greater Peterborough UTC

CENTRAL PLANNING AREACENTRAL PLANNING AREACENTRAL PLANNING AREA

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

SOUTH PLANNING AREASOUTH PLANNING AREASOUTH PLANNING AREA

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

NORTH PLANNING AREANORTH PLANNING AREANORTH PLANNING AREA

The King's 
(the Cathedral) School

Jack Hunt School

City of Peterborough Academy

St John Fisher Catholic High School

The Thomas Deacon Academy

Stanground Academy

Queen Katharine Academy

Nene Park Academy

Ken Stimpson Community School

Ormiston Bushfield Academy

Hampton Gardens Secondary School
Hampton College

Arthur Mellows Village College



Peterborough City Council: Secondary SCAP Planning Areas North, Central & South (Configuration 1)
Secondary School locations and catchments (where ap plicable)

Date: 26/10/2018Scale (at A3): 1:89752 © Crown copyright and database rights 2018 OS 10002 3205
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions : https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/terms-and-discl aimer

gr427By:Centred at: 518709,299973 

23



T
his page is intentionally left blank

24



 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Peterborough City Council 
School Organisation Plan 

 
“Delivering Local Places for Local 

Children” 
 

2018-2019 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

25



 

 

Foreword 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you would like any further information, or would like to discuss any part of the Education 
Organisation Plan in detail, please contact Clare Buckingham. 
 
Strategic Education Place Planning Manager (CCC and PCC) 
Peterborough City Council,  
Sand Martin House, Bittern Way,  
Fletton Quays 
Peterborough 
PE2 8TY 
Tel: 01223 699779 
Email:  clare.buckingham@cambridgeshire.gov.uk  

 
 

In Peterborough our absolute priority is that children and young people achieve the 

best outcomes possible and go on to succeed in further learning and in work. Crucial 

to this is the way that we work with schools and partners to plan and deliver a good 

quality place in learning for all across the City. The Council has a proven track record 

of working with a wide range of education providers to commission sufficient places 

to meet the needs of Peterborough’s residents and is committed to continuing this 

approach into the future. 

Peterborough is one of the fastest growing cities in the country, and faces significant 

pressures on education places as a result of both significant new housing 

development, as well as demographic change resulting from increased birth rates.  

The school organisation plan considers education provision in Peterborough across the 

4 to 16 age range.  

We are delighted to present this school organisation plan to you, and would 

welcome your continued engagement with it. 

 

 

Clare Buckingham, Strategic Policy and Place Planning Manager  

 

 

26

mailto:clare.buckingham@cambridgeshire.gov.uk


 

 

Contents 
 
Introduction Chapter 1 
What is Peterborough like as place?  
  
The Council’s responsibilities for school provision Chapter 2 
Background  
National Policy  
Education provision in Peterborough  
Identifying pressures  
Responding to pressures  
  
Place Pressures and Responses Chapter 3 
Primary  
Secondary  
  
Capital Programme Chapter 4 
Supporting Education Capital Planning  
Medium Term Financial Strategy  
Free Schools Programme  
  
Useful Documents and Links Chapter 5 
  
Appendices Chapter 6 
Legislative Framework  
School Planning Areas  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27



 

 

Chapter 1: Introduction 
 

1.0 What is Peterborough like as a place?  
  
1.1 Governance, location and population 

 
 Public services in Peterborough are administered through a single tier structure. 

Peterborough City Council as the unitary authority is responsible for the provision of all local 
government services within its area. The authority comprises the City of Peterborough itself, 
and 25 villages set in countryside extending over an area of approximately 344 square 
kilometres. Peterborough is an important regional centre, providing employment, shopping, 
health, education and leisure facilities for people across a wide area. The total population of 
Peterborough is estimated as 202,110 (at mid-2017), with just under 90% of this population 
residing in the Peterborough urban area.  Peterborough’s population growth has been 
significant and sustained, increasing by at least 1% per year since 2001.  

  
1.2 Demographic Change  

 
Peterborough has one of the highest birth rates in the country. Using the actual number of 
births per year and a forecast of future birth numbers1 helps provide an overview of the 
demand for school places.  Across Peterborough the number of births increased every year 
between 2006 and 2012, when it reached its peak (see graph 1). Since 2012, the number of 
births per year has fluctuated, but within a tight range of just over 3,200 (2013) and just over 
3,000 (2017). The number of births is forecast to continue at similar levels, fluctuating at 
around 3,150 per year to 2021. It is clear that the increase in births across Peterborough has, 
and will continue to have, a significant impact on the number of school places required.  
 

 
 
 

                                                           
1 Actual numbers of births (2006-2017) are from the ONS mid-year estimates. Future forecasts (2018-2021) are taken 
from Cambridgeshire County Council Business Intelligence Service’s 2017-based population forecasts.   

2,000

2,200

2,400

2,600

2,800

3,000

3,200

3,400

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
b

ir
th

s

Mid year

Graph 1: Peterborough total number of births

ONS Births CCC 2017-based forecasts

28



 

 

In addition to the population increases arising from births, Peterborough has seen sustained 
levels of house-building, with at least 700 net additional dwellings each year since 2009/10. 
Over the last 5 years there have been periods of extremely rapid housing growth. The 
housing trajectory shows that these higher levels of housing growth are expected to continue 
year on year, and to hit very high levels by 2023 onwards (see graph 2). Consequently, the 
number of children born over the next five years in the area is expected to increase once 
again climbing back towards the peak experienced in 2012. This will continue to increase 
demand for school places in various areas of the city and will significantly alter the 
distribution of the school aged population as these new developments are occupied.  
 
New housing will also encourage people to move to the area from elsewhere.  New housing 
tends to attract younger, economically active members of the population who either have 
young families or may subsequently start a family having moved to the area. 
 

 
  
1.3 Social and Economic Diversity 

 
 Peterborough has seen rapid and sustained population growth over the last 20 years, arising 

from a combination of significant international in-migration and high birth rates. 
Consequently, there is a high level of social and ethnic diversity across Peterborough.  
 
There are parts of Peterborough, predominantly in the urban area, that have high levels of 
deprivation (see figure 1). Rural areas, particularly towards the west of the region, and 
pockets to the north and south of the urban area, are much more prosperous. The following 
electoral wards include LSOAs in the top 20% most deprived nationally using Index of 
Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2015 national deciles: Bretton, Central, Dogsthorpe, East, North, 
Orton Longueville, Orton Waterville, Paston and Walton, and Ravensthorpe. 
 
 
 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

2,000

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 d

w
el

lin
gs

Graph 2: Peterborough housing completions and trajectory

Completions Trajectory

29



 

 

 
Figure 1: Economic and social deprivation across Peterborough  

 
The retail, employment services, health and care, business and professional services sectors 
are significant employers in Peterborough. The 2008 economic recession impacted 
Peterborough’s economy, although over the last five years unemployment rates have 
recovered, and are now lower than pre-recession levels.  
 
In rural parts, the economy is focused largely around agriculture and associated industries. 
These areas have, in recent years, attracted migrants from Eastern Europe. Schools in these 
areas are often subject to seasonal changes to their pupil populations.   
 
A similar experience of seasonal changes to school populations is often shared by schools 
near Traveller sites. The authority has one of the largest Traveller populations in the country.  
 
The RAF Wittering base provides another aspect to Peterborough’s diversity. Activities here 
can have an impact, resulting in reductions or increases in pupil numbers with little advance 
warning.  
 

  
  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



 

 

Chapter 2: The Council’s responsibilities for school provision  
 
 

 

2.0 Background 
  
 There have been many changes at national level in how education services and schools are 

provided. However, the Council continues to have a statutory responsibility for: 

 acting as the corporate parent for Looked After Children, with responsibility for 
improving their educational attainment 

 securing education provision for young people in custody 

 safeguarding children and young people 

 providing impartial advice to parents and carers of children and young people with 
SEND 

 admission of children to community and voluntary controlled schools 
  
 The Council is also responsible for the outcomes and well-being of all Peterborough children. 

In this role, the Council works with others to ensure: 

 all children receive the high standard of teaching and learning to which they are entitled 

 organisational barriers do not prevent children and families accessing the services they 
need 

 vulnerable children, including those with special educational needs and disabilities 
(SEND), have access to high quality provision that meets their needs 

 a narrowing of the attainment gap for those who are vulnerable or at risk of becoming so, 
through partnership working across all agencies 

  
2.1 National Policy 
  
 Section 14 of the Education Act 1996 places Councils under a general duty to provide a school 

place for every child living in their area of responsibility who is of statutory school age and 
whose parents want their child educated in the state-funded sector. 
 
The Education and Inspections Act 2006 placed additional duties on Councils to ensure fair 
access to educational opportunity, to promote choice for parents and secure diversity in the 
provision of schools. The Act also placed an explicit duty on Councils for the first time to 
respond formally to parents seeking changes to the provision of schools in their area, 
including new schools. 

  
2.2 Education provision in Peterborough 
  

Education provision is defined in six phases by the government (see figure 2). Peterborough 
operates a two-tier educational system, in which schools are organised into primary and 
secondary schools2. There are some exceptions to this with a number of infant and junior 
schools: Dogsthorpe Infant and Juniors, Queen’s Drive Infants and Thomas Deacon Juniors, 

                                                           
2 Since the 1990s, Peterborough has operated a policy of children attending school in the September following their 
fourth birthday, even though the statutory school age starts the term after a child’s fifth birthday.  In line with this, 
education provision is referred to as covering the 4-16 age range. 

31



 

 

Brewster Avenue Infants and St Augustine’s C of E Junior schools. In addition, King’s (The 
Cathedral) School takes 15 children from Year 3 and Hampton College is an all through school 
with both a primary and secondary phase. The children who are admitted into Thomas 
Deacon Juniors have an automatic right of entry to Thomas Deacon Academy. 
 
 

Figure 2: Six phases of education provision  
 

  
2.3 Working with education providers  
  
 The Council continues to respond positively to the changes in national policy direction, 

working closely with existing and potential education providers and the Regional Schools 
Commissioner (RSC) to promote diversity, choice and quality in education provision across 
the City. 
 
The Council is committed to working in partnership with all education providers, regardless 
of status. In its role as a champion for children, young people and their families, the Council 
continues to provide advice, guidance and support to: 

 promote educational development and school improvement  

 challenge the lowest performing schools to deliver improved outcomes 
  

The Council also acts as a critical friend; raising concerns over educational performance and 
outcomes directly with schools, and where these are not addressed by the schools leadership 
and governors, bringing this to the attention of the Regional Schools’ Commissioner and/or 
requesting Ofsted undertakes an inspection. 
 
The Council believes that all education provision should be inclusive, attractive and 
welcoming, whilst promoting safeguarding. It should also enable children, young people and 
their families to access a range of support, advice and positive activities which includes 
transport in cases where there is not an available walking route to and from their designated 
school.3 

  
2.4 Identifying pressures 
  

                                                           
3 This includes ensuring that all cycling and walking routes comply with the Council’s safety criteria. 

Primary Schools 
4 to 10 years 

Secondary Schools 
11 to 16 years 

  
Further  

Education 
16 years + 

  
Key Stage 4 

14 to 16 years 

  
Key Stage 3 

11 to 13 years 

  
Key Stage 2 
8 to 10 years 

Key Stage 1 
5 to 7 years 

Early Years & 
Foundation Stage 

0 to 5 years 

32



 

 

2.4.1 Changes in the birth-rate 
 

 Information about birth-rate is obtained from NHS birth and registration data. The data 
provides robust information about the number of children born in a given area and is used as 
a baseline, from which it is possible to forecast the number of children who are likely to 
require a place in a state-funded school. 
 

2.4.2 New housing development  
 

 Information about housing development is taken from: 
a) the Peterborough Local Plan: this establishes policy aspirations in relation to future 

housing development 
b) the Peterborough Housing Development Report: this sets out the number of new homes 

completed each year, and a trajectory for the number of new homes anticipated in 
future years 

 
These set out the aspirations and expectations for new housing development. As 
development is driven by economic conditions, they do not provide certainty about the level 
of development that will occur, but they are the best evidence base available on which to 
make assumptions about the impact of development on school places.  
 

2.4.3 Other factors 
 

 Other changes in demand for school places can be more unexpected, for example, as the 
result of the arrival or departure of Traveller families or military redeployments.  By their 
nature, these changes are more difficult to predict, and can result in sudden shifts in demand 
for school places.  It is, as a result, not possible to develop a strategic response to these 
changes in the same way as for longer-term shifts in demographic patterns. 

  
The impact of Brexit on future migratory patterns and upon existing EU nationals living in the 
UK is also unknown at the moment. 
 

2.5 Responding to pressures 
  
 The different pressures on available education places require a range of approaches to 

commissioning school places but the Council has some clear objectives in terms of school 
place planning:  
● To offer local places for local children, with the aim to meet parental preference for 

catchment schools 
● To offer a range of different schools for all parts of the City including community 

schools, foundation schools, trust schools, faith schools and academies 
● To offer high quality places for children to learn that encourage high levels of 

achievement 
● To avoid significant change to catchment areas 
● To limit the use of mobile classrooms to area where demand is temporary 

  
2.5.1 Planning Areas 

33



 

 

 
 In urban areas, the impact of pupil forecasts on available provision is considered more widely 

than individual education providers, reflecting the fact that there is often greater choice for 
parents when several settings or schools are located in close proximity. This also allows the 
Council to provide sufficient places, without creating surplus capacity. To help provide 
transparency in discussions with education providers, the Council groups schools within 
planning areas. These: 

 include schools in close proximity4 

 link primary schools to their catchment or designated secondary schools  

 take account of federations and partnerships between schools  

 take account of natural barriers and constraints on journeys between schools5 

 have been agreed with the Department for Education (DfE) and form the basis of the 
Council’s annual school capacity data return to government 

 
A full list of the planning areas and schools in Peterborough is included in Appendix C. This 
will be kept under review as the Council responds to demographic changes and housing 
development proposals. 

  
2.5.3 Commissioning school places 

  
 Whilst reviews of provision need to respond to local circumstances, the same broad approach 

is adopted for all reviews. This approach allows local views, especially those of parents, to be 
sought as part of the process for planning and commissioning school places. This approach is 
outlined in figure 3 below.  

  
 The council considers school sizes on a case-by-case basis but works within the following 

parameters: 

 the minimum size of a primary school is 2FE/420 places 

 the maximum size of a primary school is 4 FE/840 places 

 the minimum size of a secondary school is 4FE/840 places 

 the maximum size of a secondary school is 12 FE/1800 places 
 
2.5.4 Commissioning additional school places 

 
 National policy changes, especially the government’s academy expansion programme, has 

generated significant changes in how school places are planned and commissioned. Over 
recent years the government has invited bids to establish new schools through a centrally 
assessed, approved and funded free school programme. The free schools which have been 
approved to proceed to pre-implementation stages from Wave 12 in Peterborough are listed 
in Chapter 4.  The outcome of the Wave 13 application process will not be known until spring 
2019.  
   

                                                           
4 The council determines this as being the statutory walking distance of 3 miles for secondary aged pupils and 2 miles 
for primary aged pupils.  
5 In line with Department for Education guidance, these include divisions including major trunk roads, railways and 
rivers, regardless of the distance between schools. 

34



 

 

New schools established by the Council through the ‘academy presumption process’ are also 
now considered to be free schools. This is the process by which the Council initiates a 
competition to seek a sponsor to run a new school where it has identified the need for one. 
The final decision about who the sponsor will be is made by the Secretary of State for 
Education in liaison with the RSC. This reflects the fact that “free school” is the DfE’s policy 
term for all new provision academies whereas “academy” is a legal term for state-funded 
schools that operate independently of LAs and receive their funding directly from the 
government. However, new schools established in this way are not required to use the term 
“free school” in their name. 

  
 Table 1: Differences between the central and presumption route for new schools 

Centrally delivered free schools Presumption free schools 

Demand led Led by basic need for school places in that 
town/area 

Type of school (size, faith, location etc.) is 
determined by the applicant 

Type of school and its location is 
determined by the Council in its 

specification 

The Council is consulted but each 
application is considered on its own merits 

The Council assesses applications and puts 
its preferred option to the RSC for approval 

(or not) 

Construction costs met centrally by the 
DfE, but additional capacity created by 

centrally funded free schools is reflected in 
future basic need allocations to Councils 

Construction costs met by the Council from 
within basic need funding allocation and 
the council delivers the building project 

Revenue start-up costs met by the DfE Revenue start-up costs met by the Council 
 

  
 Although processes for commissioning the additional places across the City continue to 

develop and evolve, a key element of the Council’s approach is to work with schools to seek 
to reach a consensus agreement on the basic need for new schools, and this approach 
continues to be important.   

 
It is clear, that with many schools in Peterborough having already converted or seeking to 
convert to academy status, the relationship between schools and the Council will continue 
to change.  As of December 2018, 12 secondary schools are academies and 2 are maintained 
and 28 primary schools are academies and 30 are maintained.  
 
The need continues for schools and the Council to work together to provide additional school 
places that promote the best opportunities and outcomes for children and young people. 
This relationship now also includes the DfE, the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) 
the RSC, the Free Schools Group and recently appointed DfE place planning advisers.  
 
Where demand for places is in an area served by an academy or free school, the Council 
expects to commission the expansion of these schools to meet the identified basic need 
requirements unless demand is such, and/or capacity is constrained by site limitations, that 
the quality of existing provision would be compromised. In such cases, alternative schools 
may be considered for expansion or sponsors will be sought for new schools. There is also 

35



 

 

provision for the Council to approve a proposal for a religious body to establish a voluntary 
aided school. 

 

Chapter 3: Place Pressures and Responses 
 

3.1 Central Primary 
Overview  
This is the area of the city with the highest birth rate and the most mobile population. It covers the 
Central, East, Park, Dogsthorpe and North wards which together saw a population increase of 9,968 
between the 2001 and 2011 census, an average of 25.4%. It has the highest level of inward migration 
and has experienced one of the greatest pressures for school places. The recorded birth rate exceeds 
the overall capacity by year group for the area but the high level of mobility means that the birth rate 
cannot be relied on as the only forecasting tool here. The October 2018 school census showed 830 YR 
pupils attending the primary schools and an overall PAN of 885. Birth data shows 1,005 children born 
in the area in this age cohort, so the mobility trend is for families to either move away from the area 
as children are growing up or attend schools outside the central primary area.   
What have we done?  
Fulbridge and Gladstone primary schools have expanded to 4 forms of entry, creating between them 
an additional 630 places from September 2014. Thomas Deacon Academy (TDA) opened a primary 
phase for KS2, with 360 places, also from September 2014. Pupils attending the TDA KS2 provision 
will previously have attended Queen’s Drive Infant School.  There is no scope for further expansion, 
so any pupils above the number of available places will be allocated to schools in neighbouring 
planning areas. In addition, it proved necessary to provide an additional form of entry in Year 2 (a 
bulge class) at Gladstone Primary School from October 2016 because of a shortage of places in this 
year group. Likewise, a reception year bulge class was provided at Dogsthorpe Infant School in Easter 
2017. 
What are we doing?  
A small expansion of Lime Academy Parnwell increasing capacity at the school from 1.5FE to 2FE has 
just been handed over by the contractors. 
 
The Council has also recently been consulted by the sponsor of Gladstone Primary School on a 
proposal to reduce its PAN from 120 to 90.  The Council has formally recorded its opposition to the 
proposal as it would remove school places for which there is a local need.  

 

3.2 West Primary  
Overview 
The areas nearest to the city centre have a high percentage of newly arrived families, putting pressure 
on school places. There has been some residential development in Thorpe primary catchment area. 
In addition, outline planning permission has been granted for a new development of 350 homes.  
What have we done?  
Ravensthorpe and Thorpe Primary School were each expanded by 210 places in 2014/15. West Town 
Primary School has been re-built under the Priority School Building Programme with an increase of 
315 places from September 2016.  
What are we doing?  
There are no further plans to expand primary schools in this area.  

 

3.3 Fletton and Woodston Primary  

36



 

 

Overview 
Birth data shows the number of children in the area will soon exceed the places available. There have 
been large housing developments at Hempsted, Buttercream Way and Sugar Way and another 71 
dwellings are planned on Sugar Way.  
What have we done?  
Woodston Primary School was expanded by 210 places from September 2014. It also took a bulge 
class into Year 1 from September 2017. 
What are we doing?  
A feasibility study for the expansion of Woodston Primary School was concluded in 2017. The school 
is currently being expanded to 3FE (a further 1FE expansion) to be ready for September 2019. 

 

3.4 The Ortons  
Overview 
The population of the Ortons has been fairly stable with the schools taking out of catchment pupils 
(particularly from Fletton, Woodston and the Hamptons). A large housing development of 320 
dwellings in Orton Wistow’s catchment is still under construction and is starting to impact on pupil 
numbers in the area, as are infill developments. In addition, 650 homes are planned on the East of 
England Showground. 
What have we done?  
Orton Wistow has been expanded by 105 places from September 2014. St John’s Church School has 
been rebuilt as 2FE under the Priority Schools Building Programme, creating an additional 168 places.  
What are we doing?  
Monitoring capacity in the Ortons is continuing. Ormiston Meadows School site could potentially be 
expanded by 0.5FE to accommodate future growth in pupil numbers. 

 

3.5 North Primary 
Overview 
This area has a more settled population and lower growth than the central area but numbers are rising 
as surplus places are taken by children from neighbouring areas with more pressure.  There is a large 
development, Paston Reserve, under construction which will ultimately have its own primary school. 
Currently children living in this development attend existing schools but this is only sustainable until 
2022.  
What have we done?  
The second phase of Discovery Primary School extension was completed in 2017 and provides an 
additional 120 KS2 places.   
What are we doing?  
Paston Reserve Primary School is a proposed new 2FE school on the Paston Reserve site to serve the 
needs of the development and provide a small buffer for children living outside the immediate area. A 
free school bid was submitted and approved as part of the Wave 12 programme and an opening date 
of September 2022 has been agreed with the DfE.  

 

3.6 Stanground Primary 
Overview 
The school population is rising rapidly in this area mainly due to the Cardea housing development of 
over 1,600 dwellings, which is now nearing completion. The popularity of the Stanground schools and 
the lack of capacity in the neighbouring Fletton and Woodston area are adding to the place planning 
pressures. All schools in this planning area have waiting lists across all year groups. 

37



 

 

What have we done?  
Southfields Primary has been permanently expanded to 3FE from September 2016, an increase of 210 
places. St Michael’s has been increased to 2 FE, an increase of 210 places from September 2016.   
What are we doing?  
In view of the continued demand and pressure for places from the new Cardea estate at Stanground 
the expansion of Oakdale Primary School from 1FE to 2FE will be completed for September 2019.  

 

3.7 The Hamptons 
Overview 
Hampton is a new township that started being constructed in the 1990s. Pupil numbers have exceeded 
all original forecasts. There are three primary schools with a total of 1680 places for the development 
so far; the original S106 agreement allowed for 840. A further 3,050 dwellings are planned for this 
area, now known as Hampton East, the first phase of development started in the last quarter of 2017. 
There are no spare places in any of the year groups across all three primary schools. A major 
implication of this is the cost of transport as a result of not being able to offer these children a place 
at a local Hampton School. 
What have we done?  
None of the current Hampton school sites can be expanded. 
What are we doing?  
The Free School bid for the first Hampton East primary school (now known as Hampton Lakes Primary 
School) was approved, as part of Wave 12, in April 2017. The school will open with a PAN of 30 in 
September 2019 in temporary accommodation on the site of Hampton College Primary Phase. It is 
anticipated the Hampton Lakes Primary School permanent building will be completed in late spring 
2020. This will be located in the new Hampton Lakes development east of the A15, near Teardrop Lake 
and will be able to accommodate 420 pupils.  
 
There has also been bids put forward in Wave 13 for the second Hampton East primary school; known 
as Hampton Gardens Primary Academy. The outcome for these will be announced in spring 2019.   
 
South of the Hampton development a new urban extension of 5300 dwellings, Great Haddon, is due 
to commence towards the end of 2019. Bids for the first primary school on this development have 
been submitted in Wave 13. Again, the outcome for these will be announced in spring 2019.  

 

3.8 Rural Primary 
Overview 
The City of Peterborough is often viewed as an urban authority. However, it also comprises 25 villages 
which between them have 9 primary schools with a total PAN of 311 places or 10.5FE. Most of the 
rural areas have fairly slow population growth, with the exception of Eye which is designated as a 
growth village under the Local Development Plan. The village schools are popular and take children 
from out of catchment and out of the local authority area. Wittering takes children from the local RAF 
base and consequently has high pupil mobility. In addition, it has insufficient in-catchment pupils to 
fill the school and is increasingly taking out of catchment pupils because of shortfalls elsewhere. 
Barnack has a low number of in-catchment pupils but is popular and takes pupils from elsewhere, 
including outside the local authority area. The Local Plan envisages a continuation of limited 
development in key villages such as Eye, Helpston and Thorney. There is also a planning application 
for 80 dwellings which has been successful in Barnack. A review of primary school provision in this 

38



 

 

planning area was completed in the autumn of 2017 and the specific recommendations arising are set 
out below. 
What have we done?  
There has historically been capacity across this planning area.  
What are we doing?  
The review of the rural areas of the City has meant the need to consider proposals for the expansion 
of two village primary schools; the Duke of Bedford (Thorney) and Eye Primary. The council is currently 
monitoring the need for expansion at the Duke of Bedford. A feasibility study has been carried out at 
Eye Primary; however this is dependent on the proposed neighbouring housing development receiving 
planning permission. There is also potentially a need to expand John Clare Primary School in Helpston 
from 0.5 to 1FE to mitigate the effects of housing growth in Helpston and Barnack (it is not possible to 
expand Barnack primary school due to site constraints). Options for expansion have been developed 
and are currently under consideration.  

 

3.9 City-wide Secondary  
Overview 
A review of the pressures on secondary school places has recently been completed.  This involved the 
analysis of post code data for all secondary schools comparing the post codes of the children in Year 7 
and 8 to that of children in Years 4 and below. The review has confirmed that secondary school 
numbers will continue to rise in the coming years. The review also confirmed that the existing 
proposals already contained within the previous sufficiency statement are needed to ensure that the 
required number of places are provided. In addition, the provision of a new secondary school in Paston 
Reserve is required to serve not only the demand arising from that development but also the demand 
arising from the PE1 and PE2 areas of the City.  
What have we done? 
Jack Hunt Secondary School was expanded by one FE from September 2018. Both Ormiston Bushfield 
Academy and Nene Park Academy have been expanded to take two additional FE into Year 7 from 
September 2018.  

What are we doing?  
The Council proposes to expand Ken Stimpson Community School from September 2019 by 2FE. This 
has planning permission with a view to reaching financial and commercial close in March 2019 and 
starting on site in May 2019.  
 
A new 8 FE school is to be built on the Paston Reserve site to serve the children from the new housing 
estate as well as the proposed new housing estate (Norwood) adjacent to Paston Reserve which will 
provide between 1,500 and 2,300 units. Pupil yield modelling shows that the housing estates will 
generate up to 5 FE. The additional 3 FE will provide some capacity to meet the demand from the rest 
of the city (see above).  A proposal to establish this school has been submitted by Arthur Mellows 
Village College (4Cs Trust) to the DfE as part of wave 13 of the DfE free schools programme. A decision 
on the Paston Reserve Free school is expected in the spring of 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



 

 

Chapter 4: Education Capital Projects 
  
4.0 Supporting Education Capital Planning 
  
 The Council, as part of its annual budget-setting process, sets out its three-year capital spending 

projections. The council has priorities for how it allocates funding. These include:  
  health and safety improvements to avoid school closures 

 investment in the provision of sufficient school places in line with the Council’s statutory 
duties (referred to commonly as meeting basic need)  

 implementing statutory changes, for example, increasing the age range a school serves 

 implementing the recommendations of a review of education provision 

 implementing new statutory duties or education policy changes where no other funding is 
available 

 reducing schools’ maintenance costs, prioritising schools in the worst condition 

 improving schools’ environmental performance, prioritising those with the most inefficient 
buildings 

 
 The Council will work with academies and free schools to seek to secure capital funds from the 

Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) to help address condition and suitability needs. 
  
4.1 Medium Term Financial Strategy (2018/19 to 2020/21) 
  
 The following projects (actual and potential) have been identified as part of the Council’s 

statutory place planning responsibilities. 
  

 

Primary Provision 

School Description Purpose Opening Date Status 

Hampton Lakes 
Early Years 

Early Years facilities 
as part of Hampton 

Lakes Primary 

New 
Community 

September 2020 
Early Years funded from 

S106 contributions.  

Oakdale Primary  
1FE expansion to a 

2FE school 
Basic Need April 2019  Contractors on site.  

Lime Academy 
Parnwell  

0.5FE expansion to a 
2FE school 

Basic Need February 2019 Completed.   

Woodston 
Primary 

1FE expansion to a 
3FE school 

Basic Need September 2019 Contractors on site.  

Secondary Provision 

School Description Purpose Opening Date Status 

Jack Hunt 
Secondary 

1FE expansion to a 
11FE school 

Basic Need September 2019 Contractors on site.  

Ken Stimpson 
Secondary 

2FE expansion to a 
9FE school 

Basic Need  September 2020 

Additional 2FE from Sep 
2019 in temporary 
accommodation. 

Contractors to be onsite 
for May 2019. 

 

40



 

 

4.2 Free Schools Programme 
 
 A number of applications to open new free schools have been approved by the DfE to pre-

implementation stage under the government’s centrally administered free school 
programme; these will have an impact on the need for expansion of provision in certain 
areas. A list of the free schools approved through Wave 12 is set out below. 

  

 

Primary Provision 

School Description Purpose Opening Date 
proposed by DfE 

Status 

Hampton Lakes 
Primary School 

Run by Hampton 
Academies Trust 

 

To serve a new 
community 

September 2019 
in temporary 

accommodation 

Approved to pre-opening 
stage in wave 12 

Site identified, contractor 
due to start on site April 

2019.  

Manor 
Drive/Paston 

Reserve Primary 
School 

Run by 4 Cs MAT To serve a new 
community 

September 2022 Approved to pre-opening 
stage in wave 12 

Site identified 

 
Further applications have been made under the Wave 13 programme. The DfE is currently considering 
these applications and a decision on these is expected in spring 2019. A list of the free schools awaiting 
a decision through Wave 13 is set out below.  
 

 

Primary Provision 

School Description Purpose Opening Date 
proposed by DfE 

Status 

Hampton 
Gardens Primary 

School 

Currently subject to 
Wave 13 approval 

To serve a new 
community 

TBC Site identified 

Manor Drive 
Secondary 
Academy 

Currently subject to 
Wave 13 approval 

To serve a new 
community 

TBC Site identified 

Greater Haddon 
Primary Academy 

Currently subject to 
Wave 13 approval 

To serve a new 
community 

TBC Site identified 

 
At present, it is assumed that full approvals will be secured for each of the wave 12 and 13 free school 
proposals and that the full capital funding required will be supplied via the national free schools 
programme. In any case where approval is not forthcoming the Council will need to consider the 
implications for its schools capital programme and/or review the options available for meeting the 
need for the school places that the Free School in question was going to provide. 

  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

41



 

 

Chapter 5: Useful Documents and Internet Links 

 
Admission guidance (general): 
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/residents/schools-and-education/school-admissions/ 
 
Admission guidance (infant, junior or primary):  
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/residents/schools-and-education/school-
admissions/starting-school-in-reception/ 
 
Admission guidance (secondary):  
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/residents/schools-and-education/school-
admissions/starting-secondary-school-in-year-7/ 
 
Governmental guidance on school admissions:  
https://www.gov.uk/schools-admissions/choosing-schools 
 
Guidance on establishing new schools (either academies or free schools):  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/establishing-a-new-school-free-school-
presumption 
 
New Schools Network, a charity established to provide advice and support to promoters of 
new schools: 
http://www.newschoolsnetwork.org/ 
 
OFSTED inspection reports for schools: 
http://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/ 
 

Parents’ views of schools: 
http://parentview.ofsted.gov.uk/parent-view-results 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

42

https://www.gov.uk/schools-admissions/choosing-schools
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/establishing-a-new-school-free-school-presumption
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/establishing-a-new-school-free-school-presumption
http://www.newschoolsnetwork.org/
http://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/
http://parentview.ofsted.gov.uk/parent-view-results


 

 

Chapter 6: Appendices 
  
6.0 Appendix A: Legislative Framework 
  
6.0.1 Early Years Foundation Stage (revised April 2017) 
 The Childcare Acts 2004 and 2006 provide the legislative framework for children from birth until 

they turn five, to support their development, care and learning.  They provide the basis for the 
statutory framework for the early years foundation stage which: 

 sets the standards that all early years providers must meet to ensure that children learn 
and develop well 

 ensures children are kept healthy and safe 
 ensures that children have the knowledge and skills they need to start school 
 give children the right foundation for good future progress through school and life 

  
6.0.2 5-16 Statutory Provision 
 The Education Act 1996 consolidated the Education Act 1944 and subsequent legislative changes 

that had been enacted.  Section 14 of the Act placed LAs under a general duty to secure school 
places for every child living in their area of responsibility who was of school age and whose parents 
wanted their child educated in the state-funded sector.   
 
Subsequent Acts have further developed and defined the duties of LAs and other education 
providers in terms of securing, monitoring and maintaining sufficient education provision.   
 
The Standards and Framework Act 1998 introduced a wide range of duties and responsibilities for 
LAs, schools and governing bodies, including: 

 the introduction of a limit on Infant Class size, subsequently determined as being 30 pupils 
within a single class to one teacher; 

 the requirement to rationalise school places in line with guidance produced by the Secretary 
of State;  

 the introduction of the Code of Practice (Admissions Code) issued by the Secretary of State 
to underpin admission arrangements nationwide (arious subsequent revisions of the Code 
have taken place; the current version came into force in December 2014); and 

 the requirement to enable parents to express a preference for the school they wished their 
children to attend. 

 
The Learning and Skills Act 2000 introduced proposals for city academies.  These were developed 
further in the Education Act 2002.  Academies, as city academies have since become known, are 
independent state schools which receive their funding directly from Central Government, and which 
have greater flexibility over curriculum, contracts of employment and staff pay  than other schools 
in the public sector.    
 
The Education Act 2005 made provision for Federations between schools and a competition process 
to be undertaken by Local Authorities prior to establishing new secondary schools.   
 
The ‘Education and Inspections Act 2006’ subsequently placed requirements on LAs to: 

 exercise their duties to ensure that the provision of education promotes high standards, 
ensures fair access to educational opportunity and promotes the fulfilment by every child 
of their educational potential; 

 secure diversity in the provision of schools and increase the opportunities for parental 
choice; and to  

43

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/early-years-foundation-stage-framework--2


 

 

 give considerations to parental representations. 
 
It also extended the new school competition requirement to include primary and special schools. 
 
The Academies Act 2010, provided for existing maintained schools to apply to the Secretary of State 
to become Academies. Initially this option was open only to schools graded as ‘outstanding’ by the 
Office for Standards in Education (Ofsted), but this has subsequently been extended to all 
maintained schools.  The Act also provided for the Secretary of State to make failing schools6 
become an Academy. 
 
In addition to allowing changes in the status of existing schools, the Act introduced a new category, 
namely, additional schools.  Included in this category are: 

 Free Schools, which are intended to increase diversity within the education ‘market’ in 
response to community or parental demand.  Free Schools cannot replace maintained 
schools that have been, or are to be discontinued, and cannot be a school that could 
otherwise secure academy status; and 

 University Technical Colleges (UTCs), Academies serving the 14-19 age range, with links to 
Universities and local employers, and providing a more vocational curriculum. 

 
The key elements of the Education Act 2011 are as follows: 

 LAs’ key role would be to support parents and families through promoting a good supply of 
strong schools – encouraging the development of Academies and Free Schools which reflect 
the local community; 

 LAs would encourage good schools to expand and encourage Free Schools or Academies to 
meet demand;  

 
To support this, the Act: 

 modifies arrangements to establish new schools, giving priority to Academies to become 
the promoters of new schools; and 

 amends the Academies Act 2010 to enable the provision of 16-19 academies and alternative 
provision academies.  

 
The Education and Adoption Act 2016 gave the government new powers to intervene more rapidly 
in schools rated by Ofsted as "inadequate" or "coasting" and speed up the process of converting 
failing comprehensive schools into academies. 

  

6.2 Appendix C: School Planning Areas 
  
 School Name Planning Area Name 

The King’s Cathedral School Central Primary 

Thomas Deacon Academy Central Primary 

Welland Academy Central Primary 

Gladstone Primary Academy Central Primary 

Dogsthorpe Academy Central Primary 

St Thomas More Catholic Primary Central Primary 

Fulbridge Academy Central Primary 

The Beeches Primary Central Primary 

All Saints CofE Primary Central Primary 

                                                           
6 Schools requiring intervention, as defined within Part 4, sections 59-62 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006  

44

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/32/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/6
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ofsted
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Academies_(England)


 

 

Dogsthorpe Infant Central Primary 

Queen’s Drive Infant Central Primary 

Bishop Creighton Academy Central Primary 

Newark Hill Academy Central Primary 

Lime Academy Parnwell Central Primary 

Lime Academy Abbotsmede Central Primary 

Discovery Primary North Primary 

William Law CofE Primary North Primary 

Norwood Primary  North Primary 

Paston Ridings Primary North Primary 

Welbourne Primary North Primary 

Werrington Primary North Primary 

Gunthorpe Primary North Primary 

Eyrescroft West Primary 

Highlees West Primary 

Sacred Heart RC  West Primary 

West Town Primary West Primary 

Middleton Primary West Primary 

Longthorpe Primary West Primary 

Thorpe Primary West Primary 

Ravensthorpe Primary West Primary 

Lime Academy Watergall West Primary 

Ormiston Meadows The Ortons 

Leighton Primary The Ortons 

Winyates Primary The Ortons 

St John’s Church School The Ortons 

St Botolph’s C of E Primary The Ortons 

Orton Wistow Primary The Ortons 

Braybrook Primary  The Ortons 

Brewster Avenue Infant Fletton and Woodston 

St Augustine’s C of E Fletton and Woodston 

Nene Valley Primary Fletton and Woodston 

Old Fletton Primary Fletton and Woodston 

Woodston Primary Fletton and Woodston 

Heritage Park Stanground 

Oakdale Stanground 

Stanground St Johns Stanground 

St Michael’s C of E Stanground 

Southfields Stanground 

Hampton College The Hamptons 

Hampton Hargate The Hamptons 

Hampton Vale The Hamptons 

Barnack Rural Primary  

Castor Rural Primary  

John Clare Rural Primary  

Northborough Rural Primary  

45



 

 

Peakirk-cum-Glinton Rural Primary  

Wittering Rural Primary  

Duke of Bedford Rural Primary  

Eye Rural Primary  

Newborough Rural Primary  

Arthur Mellows Village College City-wide Secondary 

Ken Stimpson Community School City-wide Secondary 

Queen Katharine Academy City-wide Secondary 

City of Peterborough Academy City-wide Secondary 

Greater Peterborough UTC City-wide Secondary 

Jack Hunt School City-wide Secondary 

Kings (The Cathedral) School City-wide Secondary 

St. John Fisher Catholic School City-wide Secondary 

Thomas Deacon Academy City-wide Secondary 

Hampton College Academy City-wide Secondary 

Hampton Gardens Academy City-wide Secondary 

Nene Park Academy City-wide Secondary 

Ormiston Bushfield Academy City-wide Secondary 

Stanground Academy City-wide Secondary 
 

 
 
 
 

 

46



CHILDREN AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM No. 6

14 MARCH 2019 PUBLIC REPORT

Report of: Adrian Chapman, Service Director for Communities and Safety

Cabinet Member(s) 
responsible:

Cllr Sam Smith, Cabinet Member for Children’s Services

Contact Officer(s): Sarah Ferguson 
Assistant Director, Housing Communities and Youth

Anna Jack, Head of Youth Support

Tel. 
07917 235538
07902 596048

TARGETED YOUTH SUPPORT SERVICE 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM: Service Director for Communities and Safety Deadline date: N/A

     It is recommended that Children and Education Scrutiny Committee:

1. Scrutinise and comment upon progress made in in respect of implementation of the Targeted 
Youth Support Service  

2. Consider, comment on and endorse the performance framework plans for the first 12 months of 
implementation 

3. Propose areas that Members feel should be incorporated within a 12 month review of the service 
in September 2018 

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT

1.1 This report is submitted to the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee following a request 
made by the Service Director for Communities and Safety. 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1 To present and review progress made relating to the implementation of the Targeted Youth 
Service (TYSS). To provide members with information relating to the redesign, achievements to 
date, and proposed performance and quality assurance processes. To give members the 
opportunity to comment upon themes for a 12 month review of the TYSS due in September 2019.   

2.2 This report falls within the remit of the Adult and Communities Scrutiny Committee to consider 
under its Terms of Reference No. 2.1. 4 Neighbourhood and Community Support (including 
cohesion, community safety and youth offending) and therefore does not sit within the remit of 
the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee.  However the Adults and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee made a referral to this Committee as they considered it an important area which 
provided a service to children and young people.

2.3 This report links to the corporate principles of Peterborough City Council in respect of:
● Improving educational attainment and skills
● Safeguarding vulnerable children and adults
● Keeping all our communities safe, cohesive and healthy

47



● Achieving the best health and wellbeing for the city

2.4 This report links to the Children in care Pledge in respect of:

● supporting young people into college and education 
● helping encourage young people to be healthy 
● supporting young people to have a good education 

3. TIMESCALES

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting 

N/A

4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

4.1 In September 2018, the Targeted Youth Support Service (TYSS) was launched in Peterborough 
as part of the Council’s transformation work in our approach to work with young people. All city 
council young people’s services have been brought together into one services that works with 
adolescents with a unique set of risks. This innovative new model builds upon a multi-agency 
partnership approach.  The TYSS brings together the Youth Offending Team, the Youth in 
Localities Team, the Not in education, Employment or Training (NEET) team, and the Social Care 
Adolescent Team.

In September 2018 we launched the Youth Offending Service and Community and Interventions 
Early Help element of the new TYSS. The new Youth and Family Team was launched on the 
later date of 1st November 2018, as a result of initial challenges recruiting Social Workers to this 
team. 

4.2 The TYSS service specification, agreed between the Communities and Safety directorate and 
the Children’s Services directorate, states that the service will be guided by the following 
principles:

● Early help services, targeted effectively, are essential 
● The service is founded on a multi-disciplinary response to the complex needs of young 

people, founded in robust partnerships across the youth sector
● There will be a seamless transition between targeted and community based services 
● A strengths based approach to our work with young people will be adopted based on the 

formation of strong relationships
● We will seek to ensure that services are offered at the right time in order to prevent needs 

from escalating, and will aim to ensure that young people and their families are supported 
at the lowest possible level of intervention

● Staff will need to be supported to develop meaningful relationships with young people and 
their families by managing workload and matching skills and experience with presenting 
need as closely as possible

● Targeted youth support services will offer a range of approaches to meeting needs best 
suited to individual circumstances including group work, coaching and, where needed, a 
range of specialist interventions in line with emotional, social and other needs – 
approaches to working with vulnerable young people pioneered in the YOS and 
elsewhere

● Targeted youth support services will relieve the pressure experienced by children’s social 
care by reducing the number of young people who reach a child protection and children 
in care threshold through early prevention

● Targeted youth support will ensure that young people are appropriately identified when 
there is no alternative other than to escalate to Child Protection or Child In Care status 

4.3 The TYSS introduces a new way of working with young people in Peterborough and aims to 
champion young people’s right to thrive and achieve their full potential through a seamless joined 
up approach. TYSS will work primarily with young people aged 13 – 19 who are:

48



● At risk of one or a combination of the following: homelessness; family breakdown; child 
sexual exploitation; child criminal exploitation; involvement in significant levels of 
substance and alcohol misuse; offending behaviour; at risk of radicalisation; and those 
who may be affected by mental health difficulties or pose a risk to others through sexually 
harmful or violent behaviour 

● Subject to a criminal justice intervention
● At risk of entering the criminal justice system
● Targeted young people who are NEET or at risk of becoming NEET
● Involved in significant levels of anti-social behaviour
● Young people living in communities whose needs may escalate without effective and 

timely intervention 

Cases relating to young people aged 11 and 12 will also be considered on an individual basis, 
as an intervention from TYSS may offer the most suitable opportunity to support that young 
person and their family.

In September 2018 we opened a new building at 49 Lincoln Road where we will meet and offer 
support to young people and their families. We run a Youth Drop in from this centre which is 
staffed 20hrs a week, and although footfall is currently low (1-2 YP per session) we are 
developing and promoting this offer as a way of professionals and young people getting 
immediate support. This will start to come into its own alongside the development of the Risk of 
Care Team as a safe place to go for young people. 

4.4 The TYSS is structured into two service areas: the Intensive Service, and Community and 
Interventions Service, which are led by two Service Managers. The Intensive Service are holding 
a caseload of young people and families with complex needs who present a risk to others or 
where there are concerns for their own safety and wellbeing. Some of these cases involve a 
statutory youth justice or child in need intervention and the remainder are managed at an early 
preventative level. The Community and Intervention Team provide programmes of intervention 
to young people and families such as Teen Triple P Parenting, National Citizenship, Duke of 
Edinburgh and Princes Trust Programmes. This service also offers intensive programme support 
to high risk young people within the Intensive Service. An early help preventative caseload of 
young people at risk of becoming NEET or a Child Missing from Education is also managed within 
the Community and Intervention Service.
    

4.5 Since the initial launch of the TYSS in September 2018 the service has achieved significant 
milestones in respect of implementing a new management structure, moving staff under new job 
descriptions and implementing a new service and team structures. We have also completed a 
TYSS wide training audit and workforce development plan, and trained staff in Motivational 
Interviewing, Teen Triple P and Solution Focused Therapy. A TYSS Implementation Governance 
Board was launched in November 2018 and has overseen the development of a TYSS 
performance framework and quality assurance framework.

4.6 The service has implemented a performance dashboard that is monitored through the partnership 
Implementation Governance Board, which meets bi-monthly. Overall TYSS performance 
focusses upon reducing the impact and pressure on higher need statutory services and improving 
long-term outcomes for young people. This framework draws upon outcomes and outputs within 
the service specification against an initial October 2018 baseline. We will be able to report on a 
full year’s data in December 2019 and will review the performance framework to ensure there is 
an impacts and outcomes focus.

Performance against the above framework evidenced in January 2019 data has started to show 
a gradual positive impact in work with young people against increasing early help episodes 
closing with successful outcomes and reducing the number of young people open to Social Care. 
We have also seen a reduction in number of young people requiring support through a Child 
Protection Plan. Whilst the restructure has impacted upon an initial increase in our NEET 
population we are now seeing a reduction in this figure which is coming in line with our statistical 
neighbours. 

49



Youth justice performance measures have also seen a positive direction of travel in the last 12 
months in respect of first time entrants and re-offending. Custody performance has deteriorated 
as a result of a smaller more complex caseload and we are working to provide new robust 
alternatives to custody to the Courts.  

The TYSS has also implemented a wider Children’s Services Quality Assurance Framework and 
will be completing regular service audits using inspection led audit criteria. This will include 
managers conducting regular monthly audits of cases and the Performance and Quality 
Assurance Team conducting two annual audits. Results of these audits will be analysed to inform 
continuous service improvement and staff development. 

4.7 Since initial launch in September 2018 the TYSS have experienced challenges in respect of the 
recruitment of qualified Social Workers to their Youth and Family Team. However, following 
persistent recruitment campaigns and recent offers made to successful candidates it is 
anticipated that we will fill all vacancies by April 2019. This will enable us to launch a Risk of Care 
Team that will provide intensive support to young people and families where there is an imminent 
risk of care.   

The whole TYSS are currently managing 233 active involvements.

Youth and Family Team – Currently have 93 open cases, 56 (60%) of which involve child in need, 
children in care or leaving care statutory involvements, and 37 (40%) are early help family support 
packages. The Youth and Family Team introduces a new way of working with young people and 
it is intended that where possible we should be engaging families earlier providing early help 
family support to prevent later escalation to child in need  and other statutory Children’s Social 
Care Interventions. 

Youth Offending Service – Currently have 69 active interventions, 59 (70%) of which are Statutory 
Court Ordered Interventions, and 20 (30%) are first tier police caution or preventative 
interventions.

NEET Intensive Caseload – Currently supporting 22 intensive NEET cases either as single 
service interventions or as part of support for the wider TYSS intervention. Outreach engagement 
visits were made to 361 young people with status unknown in December and January.  102 
interviews were carried out with NEET Young People in December and January and as a result 
the NEET figure has fallen from 9.1% in December to 7.9% in January.  We continue to close the 
gap to our statistical neighbour goal of 6.8%. 

Young People’s Work Caseload – Currently a total caseload of 49 cases. We have also 
successfully delivered 2 Teen Triple P group programmes for the first time and currently have 13 
parents being supported through the programme. In addition we are delivering 10hrs a week of 
education and positive activities for high risk YOS cases and there are also 12 hrs of Targeted 
evening Youth Groups being delivered.  

As part of the new TYSS structure we have developed a Youth Coordinator Role to foster 
relationships with the voluntary sector to ensure we are making the most of broader relationships 
with community groups through initiatives such as the Youth Investment Fund. We are also 
developing a Peterborough-wide directory of services available to young people throughout the 
city. 

The TYSS implemented an Early Help Panel to process all non-statutory referrals coming into 
the service and have received 60 referrals between September 2018 to February 2019:

Referral Source Allocated To 

50



MULTI AGENCY 
SUPPORT GROUP

24 NEET 5

CHILDREN’S 
SOCIAL CARE STEP 
DOWN 

13 YOUNG PEOPLE 
WORKER 

35

DIRECT FROM 
SCHOOL 

21 TEEN PPP 7

CHILD AND 
ADOLESCENT 
MENTAL HEALTH 
SERVICES

1 YOUTH AND 
FAMILY 

11

YOT PREVENTION 3

4.8 The following Case Studies provide a brief overview of the types of cases currently being 
managed and supported within the TYSS:

“Anthony (name changed) was open to YOS on a Referral Order. He and particularly his mother 
were difficult to engage. He was going missing but mum was not reporting this consistently. The 
offences linked to his Order included possession of weapons. There was a concern he was linked 
with criminal exploitation. The family were then evicted and mum found accommodation with a 
friend leaving her 15 year old son homeless. Anthony was accommodated and since this time a 
Youth and Family Worker, Social Worker, and YOT worker have met regularly to co-ordinate a 
risk and support plan. The Police, School and CGL Aspire are also actively involved in risk 
planning. As a result Anthony sees workers together; they give consistent messages, and are 
now all working together to make a plan for his safe return to mum’s care, and to attract him away 
from offending peers and adults who may be exploiting him.”

“Steven (name changed) was referred via the Multi Agency Support Group. He had a recent 
diagnosis of Autism and was being violent and controlling in the family home. A Youth and Family 
worker was allocated offering support to both parents and child in the family home, and the 
Community and Interventions team were also able to support by suggesting local targeted youth 
groups that he could access.”

4.9 In September 2019 there will be a twelve month review of the TYSS. It is proposed that this 
review is conducted in collaboration with input from service users, staff and partner agencies. 
The review will be presented to and considered by the TYSS Partnership Governance Board and 
it is proposed that the following areas should be considered:

● Review of Job Descriptions implemented in September 2018 to see that they are fit for 
purpose

● Review of service structure, teams and posts to ensure that the current arrangements 
allocate appropriate resources in line with demand and pressures

● Review of the Service Specification to ensure that the focus is upon improving outcomes 
for vulnerable young people and families 

● Review and amend the Performance Framework to ensure we are monitoring and 
evidencing impact and outcomes for young people

   
5. CONSULTATION

5.1 NA

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT

6.1 Members are invited to comment upon the implementation and progress of TYSS to date. 

51



Members are also asked to comment on the themes proposed for a 12 month review of the 
service in September 2019.  

7. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION

7.1 To provide further detail relating to, and to inform, the implementation and progress of the TYSS.   

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 N/A

9. IMPLICATIONS

9.1 N/A

Legal Implications 

9.2 The Youth Offending Service and Youth and Family Team that sit as part of the TYSS Intensive 
Service delivery statutory interventions in line with relevant legislation. 

Equalities Implications

9.3 No concerns in respect of over representation currently identified in the TYSS population.

Rural Implications

9.4 N/A

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985

10.1 N/A

11. APPENDICES

11.1 None

52



CHILDREN AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM No. 7

 14 MARCH 2019 PUBLIC REPORT

Report of: Jonathan Lewis, Director of Education 
Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Lynne Ayres, Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and 

University

Contact Officer(s): Pat Carrington, Assistant Director Skills and Employment / 
Principal

Tel. 01733293891

THE UNIVERSITY OF PETERBOROUGH UPDATE REPORT

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM: The Director for Education AND Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills and University.

Deadline date: N/A

It is recommended that the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee:
 

1. Note the content of the report and the history and progress to date in securing a University in 
Peterborough that has degree awarding powers.

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT

1.1 The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee requested a report giving an overview and 
progress on the University of Peterborough. 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1 The City of Peterborough has for some time had the ambition of establishing a University of 
Peterborough (UoP).  The Devolution Agreement with Government has allowed for the 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority (CPCA) to progress this project in 
partnership with Peterborough City Council, Anglia Ruskin University and Peterborough 
Regional College. This report provides an overview and explains the progress to date of the 
University of Peterborough. 

2.2 This report is for the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee to consider under its Terms 
of Reference Part 3, Section 4 - Overview and Scrutiny Functions, paragraph No. 2.1 Functions 
determined by Council :
 

  Education, including

a) University and Higher Education;
b) Youth Service;
c) Careers; and
d) Special Needs and Inclusion.

53



2.3 This report links to the Corporate Priorities by giving an overview and progress on the 
development of a University of Peterborough that will give wider access for local residents to 
study Higher Education, thus supporting the growth of aspirations and improving the education 
and skill levels of our local population.

2.4 This report links to the Children in Care Pledge as the creation of a University of Peterborough 
will create more local opportunities for accessing higher education.

3. TIMESCALES 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting 

N/A

4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

4.1 History and Time Line

The Principles of the University of Peterborough (UoP) will support the City to achieve its 
economic potential by providing excellent Higher Education (HE) that will boost all parts of the 
economy.

There has been in existence, in one form or another, a University of Peterborough stakeholder 
group since July 2015. However, it gained more momentum with the creation of the Combined 
Authority (May 17) following the agreement to become a devolved area and the University 
forming part of the devolution agreement (June 16). This stakeholder group currently consists 
of 4 organizations that have had a veto; Anglia Ruskin University (ARU), Peterborough 
Regional College (PRC), Peterborough City Council (PCC) and The Combined Authority (CA). 
The steering group has served to develop the concept and will, as of March, become an 
advisory group for a University Shadow Board. Sir Les Ebdon was appointed as the Chair of 
the Shadow Council of University Centre Peterborough in November 2018.

Below is a brief history of progress to date.

● Phase 1 of the project, which was funded by the LEP, will be completed in October 
2019.

● Phase 2 - In June 2017, the Combined Authority has been working with PRC, ARU 
and PCC to move the next stage of the University forward. The Combined Authority 
has secured circa £13m for this and the next stage is to do the full costing

To become an independent higher education provider University Centre Peterborough (UCP) 
must change its status to apply to the Office for Students (OfS). This means that from August 
2019 it can no longer be part of a joint venture with Anglia Ruskin University.  UCP has 
submitted registration to the OfS and intends to register as an approved fee cap provider which 
allows an institution to charge the higher tuition fee levels. Governance arrangements, 
curriculum and other regulatory requirements have been addressed and the appropriate 
milestones achieved.

54



4.2 The Priorities and Vision

The University will be a powerhouse for economic and intellectual growth across the region of 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough and the surrounding area, addressing the current HE cold-
spot. The University will be outward-looking, working with employers, other education providers 
and the wider community to raise aspirations and skills. Its characteristics will be:

● ‘a thriving independent campus-based university’
● A new model of a university fit for the 2020s and beyond
● A high quality provider initially focusing on teaching excellence
● A provider of excellent student experience and graduate outcomes
● A catalyst to improve educational achievement and social mobility

In order to achieve this UCP must ensure that its evolution:
● Increases the participation of young people in higher education and seeks to retain 

them within the region in high skilled employment.
● Embraces digital connectivity
● Addresses the non-competitive skills base addressing the areas identified within the 

Hatch Regeneris, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority Skills 
Strategy Evidence Based Report (2018).(this report can be supplied on request)

● Addresses deprivation through improved educational attainment and employment 
opportunities

● Supports and enables on-going workforce development and upskilling 
● Supports communities and has a civic function valued by the people of the 

Cambridgeshire, Peterborough and the surrounding areas
● Provides a workforce able to support the skills shortage in both the private and public 

sector including the delivery of Degree Apprenticeships.
● Acts as an attractor for business and future investment
● Acts as a catalyst for healthy, thriving and prosperous communities through curriculum 

design and social mobility 

The purpose of the University is to transform the region from what is a long standing HE cold-
spot, into a region that actively promotes skills development alongside social mobility through 
offering all of our residents the opportunity to receive a high quality higher education 
experience.  It must complement the digital and environmental ambitions of the region within 
its subject offer but must also have an ethos of “digital and technical excellence” and a focus 
on employability.

4.3 The formation of the Shadow Council

One of the first significant milestones for the University of Peterborough is the formation of a 
Shadow Council for the University.

Due to the existing joint venture with Anglia Ruskin University at UCP, the Shadow HE Council 
will act in an advisory planning capacity until August 2019, at which stage it is planned to 
transition into the UCP Council. The composition of this shadow board ensures that the 
University of Peterborough can demonstrate best practice to the Office for Students (OfS) 
through having implemented a robust recruitment and selection process and the successful 
appointment of the Chair, Professor Sir Les Ebdon. 

The appointment of the chair is a significant step and the credibility of the chair in the HE sector 
is key in the delivery of a successful university. Professor Sir Les Ebdon has extensive 
experience in the university and higher education regulatory sector and has been involved in 
the establishment of universities in Plymouth and Bedfordshire. The other members of the 
board have either HE experience in health, computing and business or professional experience 
in financial, legal, education or business sectors. In addition, the Combined Authority and Local 
Authority are members of the Council. On-going transparency and accountability is critical and 
this will be achieved by all papers and minutes being available on the UCP website. The current 

55



UCP Council has adopted the governance principles and practices of the higher education 
sector and as such follows the code endorsed by the Committee of University Chairs (CUC).

The next step is a formation of a new Employer and Community Consultative Group which will 
also ensure the needs of business and employers are addressed. The Shadow HE Council 
has already committed to ensuring that UCP and the subsequent University of Peterborough 
will focus on developing ‘career ready’ graduates who are able to apply their knowledge and 
skills to work.  

This proposed structure for our university has been endorsed by Jean Arnold (HE Gateways-
OfS) during a meeting on 13th June 2018. The structure was also presented to Nicola 
Dandridge, Chief Executive of OfS on 20th June 2018 when she visited UCP and met with all 
key stakeholders. 

4.4 Degree Awarding Powers

In order for Peterborough to be an independent university it needs to be able to award its own 
degrees. This will mean Peterborough Degrees, delivered in Peterborough and written locally 
and aligned to business needs. This is known as having Degree Awarding Powers (DAP). DAP 
are awarded following a successful application to the Office for Students and Quality 
Assurance Agency (QAA).

March 2019 is when UCP’s application for new degree awarding powers to achieve 
probationary powers has/is submitted to the newly formed Office for Students (OfS).  This was 
undertaken, without delays to the project, with a timeframe for the award to be determined by 
the OfS and Quality Assurance Agency (QAA).  

In the past 6 months, all of the current provision at University Centre Peterborough offered in 
partnership with Anglia Ruskin University has been successfully revalidated for September 
2019, meaning that the courses will continue to run whilst DAP is sought and showing strong 
performance to the OfS.  With all this in place, University Centre Peterborough are confident 
that these positive steps will ensure a successful degree awarding powers application with the 
OfS. 

Progress towards DAP to date include:
● Comprehensive review of UCP Staff Qualifications & Experience (3 Annual Surveys) to 

demonstrate:
o Highest Qualifications & Professional Memberships/Associations
o Experience in curriculum development and approval which has increased 

significantly over the past 2 years
o Fellowship with the Higher Education Academy
o Experience in Research & Scholarly Activity
o Appropriateness of Student: Staff ratio by course

● Development of UCP Academic Regulations / Frameworks
● Development of Draft DAP Application
● Funding of small-scale research/scholarship projects by UCP staff.
● Engagement with UCAS to define student demand for courses and inform Curriculum 

Strategy
● Engagement with external QAA consultants/advisors to assess readiness for DAP and 

review of submission documents.
● Working with Student Representatives to develop necessary Student Submissions for 

QAA Reviews
● Training / raising awareness of staff in relation to NDAP requirements and criteria.

56



The next steps toward DAP are:
● Internal Scrutiny through HE Committees: March 2019
● External Scrutiny by QAA Advisor: March 2019
● Submit Application for New DAP to OfS: March 2019
● Staff Training in Preparation for Implementation of 3 Year Plan April-July 2019
● Discussion to agree 3 Year Plan with QAA: May 2019
● Expected Outcomes & Recommendation from QAA: September 2019
● Anticipated Authorization from OfS for New DAP’s October 2019

4.5 Curriculum

The vision for the University of Peterborough is to have a technical university that is attractive 
to both potential students, businesses and communities alike. The current and future 
curriculum of the University, which will include such subjects as engineering, business, 
education, agri-tech and computing is key to growing the current numbers to the levels required 
for an independent University of Peterborough (Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
Independent Economic Review 2018 p111).

Key points to note in the ongoing development of the above mentioned curriculum are that:
● The curriculum outlined below in table 1.1 has recently been re-validated through 

Anglia Ruskin University. 
● The Hatch Regeneris, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority Skills 

Strategy Evidence Based Report (2018) is being used to further identify skills shortages 
and priority areas for development.

● New Degree Awarding Powers will provide opportunity over the next 3 years to develop 
curriculum across Science and Technology, Health and Social Care and Teaching and 
will allow us to respond to the education, skills and training needs of the region.

● The Computing degree, which was re-validated in 2017, will be the first course to go 
through the Degree Awarding process to allow us to offer additional pathways in digital 
security, artificial intelligence and games development.

● Curriculum efficiency and flexibility is central to the newly developed curriculum and as 
such will provide further opportunities to study part-time in a 4 year mode (previously 
6) with certain courses delivered in accelerated (2 year degrees) and blended modes 
(distance learning and face-to-face).

● Many of the professional courses will also have industry recognized accreditation to 
enable charted status for graduates.

Table 1.1 – ARU revalidated curriculum
Faculty Courses    2019/20 Potential for 

Degree 
Apprenticeship
s in 2020/21

BSc (Hons) Computing and Information Systems Y
BEng (Hons) Mechanical and Manufacturing 
Engineering

Y

BEng (Hons) Electrical & Electronics Control Systems 
Engineering 

Y

FdA Digital Arts
BSc (Hons) Construction Y
FdSc & BSc (Hons) Forensic Investigation
BSc (Hons) Sports Psychology and Coaching Sciences
BSc (Hons) Biological Sciences Y

Science and 
Technology

57



Provision to move to UCP in 2020/21
HNC Electrical and Electronic Engineering (Pearson 
Edexcel)

Y

HNC Mechanical and Manufacturing Engineering 
(Pearson Edexcel)

Y

HNC/D Civil Engineering (Pearson Edexcel) Y
HNC Construction Management (Pearson Edexcel) Y

FdSc & BSc (Hons) Business Management
- with Human Resources Management
- with Marketing 
- with Responsible Business 
- with Supply-chain & Logistics

Y

FdA & BA (Hons) Digital Marketing and Communications

Business 
and 
Professional 
Services

BSc (Hons) Accounting & Finance

BA (Hons) Education Studies (top-up)  Education 
and 
Teaching

FdA Early Years and Education Y

BA (Hons) Journalism
BA (Hons) Media Production
BA (Hons) Performing Arts
BA (Hons) English Literature

Creative 
Industries

BA (Hons) English with Creative Writing

BA (Hons) Criminology
BA (Hons) Sociology
BA (Hons) Psychosocial Studies

Social 
Sciences

BA (Hons) History and Archaeology Y

4.6 University site

The Council has identified a site for the University to be built on land to the south of Bishops 
Road towards the Embankment.  The first phase of building work will take place on around 11 
acres of land between the Wirrina Car Park and the Athletics Track.   It is proposed that the 
Council will make the land available as its contribution towards a joint venture vehicle including 
the Combined Authority and the University to enable the first buildings to be constructed.  The 
land will be valued at the outset. Once the University is well established the Council will receive 
a return on the land either in the form of dividend income distributed from the joint venture or 
through a sale of the land to the University.      

A draft Memorandum of Understanding has been drawn up and agreed with the Combined 
Authority in relation to the proposed arrangements for the land to be made available.  Detailed 
proposals concerning the governance of the joint venture and the role of each contributing 
party will be drawn up once the current Gateway review of the proposed delivery arrangements 
has been completed by Gleeds who have been commissioned by the Combined Authority to 
carry out this review so that the outline business case for the project can be finalised.  

The Council has already undertaken a comprehensive title search on the land to be made 
available for the proposed University.  This has identified a small number of covenants and 
other title restrictions but none of these are likely to cause any significant difficulties for the first 
phase of the Campus.  As the Campus expands, decisions will need to be made about how 
best to integrate or relocate sports facilities such as the Athletics track and Regional Pool.  
However, final decisions on these facilities will not need to be made for several years.

58



4.7 Moving Forward

Significant progress has been made in the delivery of a University of Peterborough in terms of 
regulatory compliance which is part of a pathway that needs to be followed in order to ensure 
Peterborough has its own University.

There is confidence that all partners are now on a shared vision with the detail now being 
discussed, with some of the key priorities now identified.

The following are some of the key priorities for the University of Peterborough Project:

1. Maintain effective partnerships and progression opportunities with local schools and 
colleges

2. Establish effective partnerships with industry leaders such as The Welding Institute 
3. Respond to employer demand
4. Develop a curriculum portfolio that is delivered in a variety of modes
5. Deliver taught Masters provision from 2020/21
6. Increase student numbers 
7. Demonstrate teaching excellence and lay the foundations for research excellence and 

engage in knowledge transfer opportunities
8. Inform campus development and time frames – interim requirements for 2022 and 

single site by 2024. As soon as work begins on the embankment site this will be a 
significant catalyst for the project and public perception.

9. Achieve full degree awarding powers by 2023 (* subject to QAA / OfS timeframes)
10. Achieve university title 2026/2027
11. Achieve Research Awarding Powers (PhDs) by 2030

NB. The dates shown above are the earliest dates these steps can be achieved

5. CONSULTATION

5.1 The University Steering group, which consisted of key partners and a wider stakeholder group 
including community, school, business and student representative, has over the past two years 
sought views, discussed and consulted on plans for the University of Peterborough.

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT

6.1 The anticipated outcome for consideration of this report is to provide greater information and 
assurance to members on progress for a University of Peterborough. 

7. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION

7.1 The report does not provide recommendations but is to provide information and assurance. 

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 Not applicable.

9. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

9.1 The report is to provide information and assurance on the progress of the University of 
Peterborough and therefore the report itself does not have any financial implication.  It is noted 
however, that property and finance are fully engaged with the overarching project.

59



Legal Implications

9.2 Not applicable.

Equalities Implications

9.3 The report is to provide information and assurance on the progress of the University of 
Peterborough, however recognition is given to the fact that the University will play a key role in 
widening participation and access to Higher Education to the residents of Greater 
Peterborough and Fenland.

Rural Implications

9.4 The University of Peterborough will make access to Higher Education more accessible.  
Access to the university for the wider community will form part of the overarching project.

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985

10.1 None

11. APPENDICES

11.1 None

60



CHILDREN AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM No. 8

14 MARCH 2019 PUBLIC REPORT

Report of: Lou Williams, Service Director, Children and Safeguarding

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Sam Smith, Cabinet Member for Children's Services

Contact Officer(s): Lou Williams, Service Director, Children and Safeguarding Tel. 01733 
864139

SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE AT RISK AS A RESULT OF 
BEING MISSING FROM HOME, EDUCATION OR CARE

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM: Service Director, Children and Safeguarding Deadline date: N/A

     It is recommended that the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee:

1. Note the activities by children’s and community services as well as our partner agencies to reduce 
the incidence of children and young people going missing and reducing associated risks of child 
sexual or criminal exploitation, and;

2. Note the new arrangements to improve information sharing between partner agencies by 
developing closer working relationships in this area between Peterborough City and 
Cambridgeshire County Councils, and;

3. Note the role of the new Targeted Youth Support Service in working with vulnerable young people 
at risk from exploitation. 

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT

1.1 This report was requested by the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee.

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1 This report briefly summarises the ways in which agencies are working together in Peterborough 
to help to prevent young people becoming at risk of exploitation by others and to actively disrupt 
the activities of those seeking to exploit vulnerable young people. Young people who are regularly 
missing from home, care or education are particularly vulnerable to sexual and criminal 
exploitation. This is why it is a particular focus for agencies to work together to identify young 
people who are regularly missing in order that preventative action can be taken.

2.2 This report is for the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee to consider under its Terms of 
Reference Part 3, Section 4 - Overview and Scrutiny Functions, paragraph No. 2.1 Functions 
determined by Council :
 Children’s Services including

a) Social Care of Children;
b) Safeguarding; and
c) Children’s Health.

61



2.3 This report relates to the corporate priorities relating to the safeguarding of vulnerable people.

2.4 This report directly relates to the children in care pledge as it is includes actions that children’s 
services and key partner agencies take in order to safeguard children and young people in care 
who may be at additional risk in the event that they go missing from their care placement. 

3. TIMESCALES 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting 

N/A

4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

4.1. Young people who are regularly missing from home, care or education are at risk for a number 
of reasons. These include being at risk of sexual exploitation, from involvement in organised 
criminal activity, as well as being at increased risk of developing problematic alcohol and 
substance misuse behaviours.

4.2. Practice and understanding of the issues in this area is developing quickly. The first area to be 
identified was was in relation to Child Sexual Exploitation, or CSE. A number of high profile 
prosecutions of adults who have groomed and sexually exploited mostly young women have 
taken place in recent years, with one of the first successful prosecutions taking place in 
Peterborough in 2014/15 following a joint operation between police and children’s services. 

4.3. More recently, it has been increasingly recognised that vulnerable young people who regularly 
are missing from home, care or education, also face an increased risk from a variety of other 
forms of exploitation including by peers, older young people and adults who seek to involve them 
in criminal activity or in developing extremist beliefs. Often, where peers are seeking to involve 
young people in exploitation, they themselves are being exploited by older young people or adults. 

4.4. The supply of illegal drugs from gangs in large urban areas to provincial towns and cities is an 
increasingly acknowledged issue. Known as County Lines, young people are groomed by gangs 
into transporting and supplying drugs by the promise of financial reward and the supply of drugs 
for their own personal use. Young people in this situation often do not recognise that they are 
being exploited; they sometimes have access to  significant amounts of money and often feel a 
sense of power and self-assurance. 

4.5. They are nevertheless at significant risk of harm, however. They are, for example, vulnerable to 
attack by other criminal gangs into whose areas they are bringing drugs. The gang that they are 
supplying drugs for will often seek to ensure that they are not able to leave the gang without 
consequences. Young people in this position may also find that they have been encouraged to 
run up financial debts with their gang, which they can only pay off by continuing to act on their 
behalf. 

4.6. Gangs of this type are becoming increasingly sophisticated in the way that they track the young 
people working for them. We are aware, for example, of situations where young people have 
been supported to attend appointments with youth offending services that are a requirement of 
sentence following conviction. This is to ensure that they do not breach their order and risk a 
custodial sentence, which would result in them no longer being available to the gang for continued 
running and supply of drugs. 

4.7. The police and other agencies increasingly recognise young people involved in these activities 
as being victims and act accordingly. This is difficult, however, where young people do not see 
themselves in this way, or are by the time of arrest, justified in being very frightened of 
consequences to themselves or other family members in cooperating with any police enquiries.

4.8. The practice and response to young people who face risks from outside their family homes is an 
area that has challenged safeguarding services, which have traditionally focused on family 
interventions and relationship building with young people as the main focus of intervention. 

62



Effective interventions in this area are increasingly framed around a model of practice known as 
Contextual Safeguarding. This model and other approaches to safeguarding young people at risk 
as a result of going missing from home, care or education is discussed in more detail later in this 
report. It is helpful, however, to begin by analysing key available data about young people who 
go missing from home, care and education in Peterborough.  

Responding to young people who go missing 

4.9. Young people may go missing from home, care or education for a number of reasons, and it is 
important to distinguish between behaviour that is in the normal range of adolescent behaviour – 
being away from home without permission but where the parent or carer is reasonably confident 
about where the young person’s location, for example – and behaviours that are of greater 
concern and that may indicate that a young person is at risk. 

4.10. Peterborough and Cambridgeshire children’s services are now working very much more closely 
together in this area, as part of our shared Integrated Front Door, based at Godmanchester. This 
shared service includes a joint Missing, Exploited and Trafficked [MET] Hub, which was originally 
developed in Cambridgeshire and was and continues to be a very effective approach. Indeed, the 
recent Ofsted inspection in Cambridgeshire singled out the MET Hub for praise in the way that it 
helps to safeguard vulnerable young people who go missing. 

4.11. Workers from the MET Hub ensure that children and young people who go missing are offered a 
return interview. This provides young people with an opportunity to discuss information of concern 
to them with an independent person, which they may not feel comfortable in sharing with parents 
or, for children and young people in care, their carers. Information gathered is used to build a 
picture of any patterns that may be emerging in relation to young people going missing. Such 
information might include commonalities such as areas where adults or older young people focus 
their attention on grooming young people to become involved in County Lines or other criminal 
activities, on addresses or areas where numbers of young people who have gone missing may 
be congregating and vulnerable to, for example, sexual exploitation, and the identities of any 
adults who may be of interest to police. This intelligence is then used to disrupt such activities. 

4.12. Young people may also provide information that is specific to their own circumstances. Where 
appropriate, this information is fed back to those working with them – their social worker if they 
are in care, or the Targeted Youth Support Service, or TYSS if they are a vulnerable young person 
in the community – and is then used to inform plans for them in order to improve individual 
safeguarding arrangements. 

4.13. A multi-agency protocol setting out the responsibilities of individual agencies in their work with 
young people who go missing has been developed by the Local Safeguarding Children Board. 
This helps practitioners to identify the most appropriate response when a young person goes 
missing, as well as identifying groups of young people who are most vulnerable because, for 
example, they have additional needs. The protocol also describes the circumstances when 
strategy discussions should take place between the police, children’s social care and any other 
relevant partners to share information, explore risks in more detail and begin the development of 
plans to be put in place to help to safeguard the young person concerned.

4.14. Where children and young people are open to Children’s Social Care or are looked after and go 
missing, a risk assessment is undertaken by the allocated social worker which is used to inform 
the child or young person’s plan. For children in care or who are subject to child protection plans, 
independent chairs monitor progress against plans and the extent of risks at child protection 
conferences or statutory reviews in order to ensure that plans to reduce risks are effective.

4.15. The use and quality of child sexual exploitation and missing risk assessments is monitored 
through our Quality Assurance service. In the recent Ofsted inspection, inspectors noted that 
‘Responses to children who go missing or who are at risk of exploitation are timely and they are 
closely tracked by a lead manager and missing coordinator. When risks escalate, strategy 
meetings are held, with appropriate professionals in attendance.’ Ofsted did, however, identify 

63



that we need to do more to improve the use and quality of specialist risk assessments. A head of 
service is leading on improving practice in this area, and the impact of this is being monitored 
through the action plan following the Ofsted inspection. 

4.16. Some children and young people at risk of exploitation may not go missing regularly from home 
or care but instead may have a pattern of being absent from school regularly for parts of the 
school day. All schools in Peterborough have a lead teacher responsible for ensuring that issues 
of potential exploitation among pupils in the school are identified. These leads have all received 
additional training and support to help identify signs and symptoms that a young person is 
potentially being exploited. Ordinarily, concerns about specific young people are raised through 
a referral to children’s social care. 

Numbers of young people going missing in Peterborough

4.17. The great majority of children and young people who go missing are aged 13 and above. Incidents 
of missing are more frequent in the spring and summer, and less frequent in the winter. 

4.18. The table below shows the number of missing incidents in 2017/18 and the year to date. This is 
showing us that there appears to have been a slight increase in the number of recorded missing 
episodes in the year to date compared with last year. At the end of quarter 3 in 2017/18, there 
had been 426 recorded missing episodes compared with 482 in the same period this year:

4.19. Some children who go missing do so on more than one occasion. While the table above illustrates 
the number of missing episodes, the table below shows how many individual children have been 
reported missing in each month. So, for example, in November 2018, 38 children and young 
people were reported missing for a total of 46 missing episodes: 

4.20. This measure is suggesting that the number of children going missing in the last two years has 
remained stable. In the first nine months of 2017/18, 336 individuals had been reported missing 
on at least one occasion, compared with 331 in the first nine months of the current financial year. 
Taking the two tables together, there has been no overall increase in the numbers of children and 
young people going missing over the last two years, but some have been missing on more 
occasions in the current year to date than in the same period of 2017/18.

4.21. In the great majority of instances, children and young people are missing for less than 24 hours, 
as illustrated in the table below:

64



4.22. Children and young people going missing and particularly those who go missing more regularly 
are much more likely to have some involvement with children’s social care. Children and young 
people in care are over-represented in missing figures generally. This is for a number of reasons; 
some will be missing from placement because they have returned to parents/family without 
permission, while for others, their previous experiences of parenting include inconsistent 
boundaries and a contributing factor to them becoming looked after is that they have developed 
patterns of challenging behaviour, making it more likely that they will also go missing from a care 
placement.

4.23. In the current financial year, of the 331 children and young people who have gone missing to 
date, 114 were open to children’s social care at the time they went missing, 17 had previously 
been open to children’s social care, while a further 39 became open to children’s social after 
having been missing, while only 44 have had no involvement with children’s social care:

4.24. A significant proportion of those open to children’s social care and who go missing are children 
and young people who have gone missing from care:

4.25. Of the 214 children and young people open to children’s social care at the time of going missing, 
subsequently or previously, the majority were missing on one occasion only: 

65



Identifying young people at risk from exploitation and actions taken to safeguard them

4.26. The learning from earlier strategies and approaches for safeguarding young people from sexual 
exploitation has been drawn upon when looking at how best to tackle other forms of exploitation 
of young people by peers, older young people and adults. While different in impact for and the 
general characteristics of young people targeted, there are a number of similarities in the way 
that vulnerable young people are targeted for exploitation. They are often groomed, for example, 
made to feel as though they are in control of the situation and are acting out of choice – at least 
initially – and offered financial or other forms of reward. 

4.27. As noted in the introduction to this report, there have also been significant changes in our 
understanding of how to address and reduce the risks of harm faced by young people when those 
risks are from outside of the home. This has presented challenges to agencies, which have 
traditionally focused their safeguarding approaches on direct family intervention. Making a young 
person who is regularly going missing and is suspected of being involved in, for example, County 
Lines or sexual exploitation, subject to a child protection plan is unlikely to be effective when the 
home circumstances are only a small part and perhaps have no part to play in the risks facing the 
young person. Such approaches can also alienate parents who are wanting to do all they can to 
protect their child and are struggling to do so. 

4.28. Recognition of the limitations of more traditional approaches has resulted in the development of 
models including ‘Contextual Safeguarding’, with the University of Bedfordshire playing a leading 
role in this area. Contextual safeguarding seeks to support partners [i.e. not just children’s 
services] to assess the likely level of risks to young people from risk factors outside of the home, 
such as peer on peer abuse, to take action as appropriate to reduce these risks, and in turn 
reduce the likelihood that the circumstances which may lead to exploitation of young people in 
the community are present. The model also applies in developing individual safety plans for young 
people who are at risk of or who are being exploited. The University of Bedfordshire has published 
a helpful overview of the research, which can be found at Appendix 1 to this report. 

4.29. The model is informed by the understanding that as we move from childhood through 
adolescence and into adulthood, less time is spent socialising with our families. During 
adolescence, the nature of a young person’s school and neighbourhood and the peer 
relationships they form within these settings are important in informing the extent to which they 
encounter protection or abuse. The model is summarised by the University of Bedfordshire in the 
following terms: 

4.30. The approach recognises that young people’s experiences outside of the home can inform and 
be informed by what is happening at home. Young people who have experienced domestic abuse 
at home, for example, may learn harmful social norms that affect their relationships with peers. 
Equally, young people experiencing exploitation within their peer groups may lead to a fracturing 
of relationships at home, as parents and carers struggle to understand what is affecting their child. 

66



4.31. The approach is therefore based on understanding the influence of the various factors that affect 
young people and offering them protection or place them at risk of harm, recognising that very 
often, the impact of interventions focused on individual families or young people will be limited. 

4.32. Local partners are increasingly adopting an approach that takes account of research of this 
nature. As noted above, police use information gathered from return interviews in order to disrupt 
the activities of those who are seeking to exploit young people. This may involve, for example, 
focused activities in an area of fast food shops, where young people hanging out in the area have 
been targeted by those seeking to groom them and exploit them. 

4.33. The University of Bedfordshire research summarises this approach in the following diagram: 

 

4.34. This thinking also influenced the development of the Targeted Youth Support Service, or TYSS, 
in Peterborough. The TYSS works with young people who are open to the Youth Offending 
Service and on the edge of care, as well as those who are at risk of exploitation. 

4.35. The service is based within the Communities area of the People and Communities directorate. 
This is in order that the service can make best use of links with community safety and housing 
services. The team incorporates the Youth Offending Service, a dedicated youth and family team 
and a community’s team. The service has very close links to children’s social care, including the 
Missing Exploited and Trafficked hub as described above, as well as to Youth Offending Services. 

4.36. This multidisciplinary approach that includes young people’s workers and youth and family 
workers who support young people to be in education, employment and training, and social 
workers able to assess and manage risk, has been established because more traditional social 
work services often struggle to engage and support this group of vulnerable and hard to reach 
young people. 

4.37. The service was launched in September 2018, and as well as improving the safeguarding of 
vulnerable young people from the risk of exploitation, and reducing the numbers of young people 
coming into the criminal justice system is also expected to help in reducing the number of young 
people coming into the care system in an unplanned way. Further details about the TYSS are 
included in a separate report Appendix 1 - The Contextual Safeguarding Briefing.

67



5. CONSULTATION

5.1 Consultation has taken place with key officers and key partner service areas including business 
information services for performance data. 

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT

6.1

6.2

This report outlines the wide range of services and interventions by the children’s and community 
services as well as by our key partner agencies to safeguard children and young people who are 
vulnerable as a result of being missing from home, education and care. 

The new Targeted Youth Support Service is now fully operational, and is expected to improve 
the service offered to young people who are vulnerable for a variety of reasons through its 
multidisciplinary approach. 

7. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION

7.1

7.2

Information sharing and partnership working is critical in supporting and safeguarding young 
people who are at risk because they are regularly missing from home, education or care. Working 
across Peterborough and Cambridgeshire through the Missing, Exploited and Trafficked Hub, 
which is part of the shared Integrated Front Door supports joint working in this area with the police 
as well as other key partners.  

The new Targeted Youth Support Service has been developed in order to bring key services and 
disciplines together, improving our ability to safeguard vulnerable young people.

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 There are no applicable alternative options available

9. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

9.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Successful prevention of young 
people coming into care represents good financial investment. 

Legal Implications

9.2 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 

Equalities Implications

9.3 There are no direct implications for equalities issues arising from this report.

Rural Implications

9.4 There are no particular implications for rural communities in Peterborough arising from this report.

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

10.1 ‘Contextual Safeguarding: An Overview of the Operational, Strategic and Conceptual 
Framework’: Published by the University of Bedfordshire and Carlene Firmin 

11. APPENDICES
11.1 Appendix 1: ‘Contextual Safeguarding: An Overview of the Operational, Strategic and Conceptual 

Framework’: Published by the University of Bedfordshire and Carlene Firmin 

68



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contextual Safeguarding 
 
 
 

An overview of the operational, strategic and conceptual framework 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Carlene Firmin 

November 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

69



THE INTERNATIONAL CENTRE  

Contents 

INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................ 1 

WHY IS CONTEXT IMPORTANT .............................................................................. 1 

CONTEXTUAL SAFEGUARDING FRAMEWORK .................................................... 2 

A CONTEXTUAL SAFEGUARDING SYSTEM AND INTERVENTIONS ................... 4 

CONTEXTUAL SAFEGUARDING AND CHILD PROTECTION SYSTEMS .............. 6 

CONCLUSION ........................................................................................................... 7 
 
 
 
 
 
Figures 
Figure 1: Contexts of Adolescent Safety and Vulnerability .................................. 2 
Figure 2 Contextual Safeguarding Framework ...................................................... 3 
Figure 3: Role of Contextual Interventions ............................................................ 5 
Figure 4 Four Domains of Contextual Safeguarding ............................................. 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 

70



 

Introduction 
 

Contextual Safeguarding has been developed at the University of Bedfordshire over the past 
six years to inform policy and practice approaches to safeguarding adolescents. Initially 
emerging from a three-year review of operational responses to peer-on-peer abusei, 
Contextual Safeguarding provides a framework to advance child protection and safeguarding 
responses to a range of extra-familial risks that compromise the safety and welfare of young 
peopleii. This briefing collates and summarises learning from multiple publications on the 
subject of Contextual Safeguardingiii with particular reference to the: 

1. International evidence on why context is important to adolescent welfare 
2. Contextual Safeguarding framework with specific reference to how contexts relate to 

each other and inform young people’s behaviours 
3. Contextual Safeguarding system and the role of contextual interventions 
4. Implications of Contextual Safeguarding for child protection systems and practices 

 

Why is context important 
 
As individuals move from early childhood and into adolescence they spend increasing 
amounts of time socialising independently of their familiesiv. During this time the nature of 
young people’s schools and neighbourhoods, and the relationships that they form in these 
settings, inform the extent to which they encounter protection or abuse. Evidence shows 
that, for example: from robbery on public transport, sexual violence in parks and gang- 
related violence on streets, through to online bullying and harassment from school-based 
peers and abuse within their intimate relationships, young people encounter significant harm 
in a range of settings beyond their families. 

Peer relationships are increasingly influential during adolescencev, setting social norms 
which inform young people’s experiences, behaviours and choices and determine peer 
status. These relationships are, in turn, shaped by, and shape, the school, neighbourhood 
and online contexts in which they develop (Figure 1). So if young people socialise in safe 
and protective schools and community settings they will be supported to form safe and 
protective peer relationships. However, if they form friendships in contexts characterised by 
violence and/or harmful attitudes these relationships too may be anti-social, unsafe or 
promote problematic social norms as a means of navigating, or surviving in, those spaces. 

 
Contextual Safeguarding is an approach to understanding, and responding to, young 
people’s experiences of significant harm beyond their families. It recognises that the 
different relationships that young people form in their neighbourhoods, schools and 
online can feature violence and abuse. Parents and carers have little influence over 

these contexts, and young people’s experiences of extra-familial abuse can 
undermine parent-child relationships. Therefore children’s social care practitioners 

need to engage with individuals and sectors who do have influence over/within extra- 
familial contexts, and recognise that assessment of, and intervention with, these 

spaces are a critical part of safeguarding practices. Contextual Safeguarding, 
therefore, expands the objectives of child protection systems in recognition that 

young people are vulnerable to abuse in a range of social contexts. 

71



2 THE INTERNATIONAL CENTRE  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 1: Contexts of Adolescent Safety and Vulnerability( Firmin 2013:47) 

Young people’s 
engagement in extra- 
familial contexts can also 
inform, and be informed 
by, what is happening in 
their homes. Therefore, 
when young people are 
exposed to violence or 
exploitation in their 
school,  community or 
peer group this may 
fracture their family 
relationships and 
undermine the capacity of 
their parents/carers to 
keep them safe. Likewise, 
if young people are 
exposed to harm within 
their families such as 
domestic or physical 

abuse this can impact their behaviour in extra-familial settings. They may learn/adopt 
harmful social norms which inform their peer relationships. Or young people in these 
situations may avoid their home altogether and spend time in street or community settings 
where they may experience criminality, violence and exploitationvi. Given this contextual 
nature of safety and vulnerability during adolescence, systems and services designed to 
keep young people safe need to engage with the dynamics at play in extra-familial, as well 
as familial, settings (Figure 1). 

 

Contextual Safeguarding Framework 
 

In light of the above evidence base, from 2011-2014 I explored the contextual dynamics of 
nine cases of peer-on-peer abuse and the ability of services to safeguard the 145 young 
people featured in themvii. Through this process it became increasingly evident that while the 
risks faced by young people in these cases percolated and escalated in their peer groups, 
schools and neighbourhoods, professionals assessed and intervened with their families in a 
bid to keep young people safeviii. These attempts to address the contextual dynamics of 
peer-abuse using interventions with young people and families were compromised by: 

a) The interplay between different contexts and relationships (for example the impact 
that young people’s experiences in their neighbourhood had on their relationships in 
school and vice versa) 

b) The varied ‘weight of influence’ that different contexts appeared to have – for 
example peer influence appeared to outweigh that of parents/carers in the escalation 
towards an abusive incident, and; risks within extra-familial settings appeared to 
outweigh the relative safety within families when motivating young people’s actions 

These dynamics are exemplified by the following case exerts: 

Mother of ‘Jamie’ also phoned the school to state that Jamie left home on the Sunday 
afternoon after she approached him and his friends about smoking in the stairwell. 
Jamie had phoned his mother each day but said he was staying with friends (while 
aged 15). There was a failure to ascertain what happened during that period, although 
some attempts (were) made by school to speak to other students to find out where 
Jamie was staying. (Case 6, suspect in a rape case) (Firmin, 2015:194) 

 
Neighbourhood 

 
 

Schools 
 
 

Peers 
 
 

Home/Family 
 
 
 
 

Child 

72



3 THE INTERNATIONAL CENTRE  

‘I know most of the boys arrested in connection with this offence and if it became 
public knowledge that I have assisted police and provided evidence against them I 
would be subjected to serious violence before or after the trial...I am aware that some, 
especially ‘Lucas’, uses violence against people on a regular basis....I would fear for 
my safety, my family’s safety and our property‟. (Case 1, view of bystander who 
intervened during a rape) (Firmin, 2015: 208) 

 
‘Cos I know what these boys are like if they don’t get what they want they’ll beat you 
up or get girls to beat you up and they’ll switch for no apparent reason…if you say no 
they consider it as being rude and they don’t like getting talked to like that, and if 
you’re rude to them then they’ll beat you up and I’ve seen how they beat up people, 
how everyone’s scared of them.…I said no for something very little I’ve been beaten 
up and bottled and I realised if I did say no what would happen…I was pressurised and 
scared, I knew deep down I didn’t want it cos I was still young but I didn’t have a 
choice.‟ (Case 4, account of young woman raped by peers but who was living in a safe 
home) (Firmin, 2015:122) 

 
In order to engage with these dynamics professionals in the cases required a policy and 
practice framework that moved beyond work with individuals and families to recognise a) the 
differential weight of influence that contexts have in shaping the behaviours of young people, 
and b) the impact that extra-familial settings can have on the ability of parents and carers to 
be protective. A Contextual Safeguarding framework was built in response (Figure 2): 

 

Figure 2 Contextual Safeguarding Framework (Firmin 2015:298) 
 
This framework provided a strategic and operational illustration of a Contextual Safeguarding 
model. It depicts a young person who is part of multiple social contexts – overlapping with 
each other as a result of interplay. The varying size of each context box depicts the matter 
of context-weighting. The size of each context box can be amended to represent the 
weight of influence that a particular context has in any given case (for example, the norms 
within a young person’s neighbourhood may bear most influence in one case and therefore 

Local Safeguarding Partnership 

Oversight of 

1. Individuals affected by peer-on-peer abuse 
2. The social fields in which abuse has occurred 

3. Services commissioned to address social fields and individuals 

Multi-agency identification, assessment and intervention 

Prevention Early Intervention Reactive intervention 

Neighbourhood 

School Young 
person 

Peer network 

Home 

73



4 THE INTERNATIONAL CENTRE  

be the largest box in the illustration– in another case it may be norms at school etc.). At a 
strategic level this framework proposes that any local safeguarding partnership should have 
oversight of the nature and number of the contexts in which abuse has occurred within their 
geographical area of responsibility as well as the individuals affected. Such information 
could inform the commissioning of contextual preventative, early and reactive interventions 
as part of a wider safeguarding system. 

A case example helps to illustrate the implications of this model. Dean is groomed by a 
street gang in his neighbourhood to traffic drugs across the country. He is approached by 
them when hanging-out with his friends at a local take-away food shop. The influence of 
those who have groomed him means that Dean doesn’t come home when his parents ask 
him too and stops answering their calls while running drugs. Slowly Dean’s parents lose 
control of him and when they try to lock him in the house he physically attacks his mother to 
get out. Dean is one of six peers who have all been approached at the take-away shop for 
the purposes of drug trafficking. Within a Contextual Safeguarding model the risk in Dean’s 
neighbourhood, and the group who have groomed him, appear to be more influential than 
his parents. Addressing this issue may in turn address the challenges that Dean is facing at 
home – whereas intervening with Dean’s family is unlikely to impact the risks he is facing in 
the community. Strategically the safeguarding partnership is made aware of the trend 
associated to the take-away shop, a street gang, six young men and the issue of drugs 
trafficking and work together to design a plan for disrupting risk in that context (and thereby 
safeguard all six young men affected by it). 

At this stage Contextual Safeguarding offered a framework to shape the development of 
policy and practice models for safeguarding young people affected by extra-familial risks. 
The framework needed to be applied in order to identify the resources, structures and 
partnerships required to bring the model to life and test its usability. 

 

A Contextual Safeguarding system and interventions 
 
From 2013-2017, the emerging Contextual Safeguarding framework was applied to develop 
local responses to peer-on-peer abuse with 14 multi-agency safeguarding partnerships 
across England1 – referred to as sites in this briefingix. Each site engaged in a contextual 
auditx to identify the extent to which its policies and practices addressed the extra-familial 
dynamics of peer-on-peer abuse. Following audits an action plan was developed in each site 
to enhance or embed existing contextual practice. Collectively this process resulted in 18 
activities, co-produced by researchers and practitioners, to contextualise local safeguarding 
practices. Activities included: work with Fair Access Panels to explore the use of managed 
moves in response to vulnerability at school; the development of templates to collect 
information on peer-group dynamics as part of assessment processes, and; frameworks to 
contextualise multi-agency meetings about young people who had displayed harmful sexual 
behaviours. All resources produced during this project have been publishedxi, as has a 
toolkit of the audit processxii. 

The contextual interventions designed during this project were intended to complement and 
enhance, rather than replace, models of 1:1 and family intervention. Extensive evidence has 
established the importance of relational working for young people, as well as the work that is 
required with families, for addressing the impact of extra-familial risk on children and 
familiesxiii. Contextual Safeguarding provides a framework through which to recognise extra- 

 
1 Sites engaged in three stages: the first involved three sites (made up of nine local authorities) 2013 
- 2016, the second involved a further three sites (made up of three local authorities) 2014-2016, and 
the third involved a further three sites (made up of three local authorities) 201- 2017 

74



5 THE INTERNATIONAL CENTRE  

familial factors that may undermine or disrupt family and 1:1 interventions. As illustrated in 
Figure 4, extra-familial risks can: impact the emotional, physical and mental well-being of 
young people; drive their involvement in offending, using drugs and alcohol and going- 
missing; undermine their access to education and other services, and; negatively impact 
family relationships. 1:1 and familial work is critical for supporting young people to: 
recognise, and recover from, these experiences; re-build their positive relationships; and re- 
engage in positive activities. However, in order for this to happen, the extra-familial factors 
that have contributed to this impact also need to be addressed. Therefore, young people 
need to be supported to build protective peer relationships, within safe school and 
community settings. Without this type of intervention, the extra-familial risks which 
negatively impacted an individual and their family will persist, and undermine the potential 
impact of the support that they are receiving. 

 

 
Interventions to create 

favourable social conditions for 
1:1 delivery 

 
• Build supportive and pro-social peer networks 
• Ensure safe and nurturing educational 

environments 
• Reduce exposure to street-based and online 

crime and victimisation 
• Provide safe sites of adolsecent socialisation 

 
 

1:1 and familial interventions 

 
• Recognise/recover from trauma 
• Re-build family relationships 
• Re-engage in education and other activities 
• Reduce incidences of offending, going missing 

etc. 

 

Impact of extra-familial risk on 
children and families 

 
• Emotional, physical and mental well-being 

impacted 
• Involvement in offending, going missing use of 

alcohol and drugs etc. 
• Family relationships impacted 
• Ability to access education and other services 

affected 

 

 

 
Figure 3: Role of Contextual Interventions (Firmin et al., 2016:47) 

 
 
 
While initially designed to respond to the extra-familial dynamics of peer-on-peer abuse, 
practitioners identified that the contextual interventions and resources developed during the 
project were relevant for addressing the extra-familial dynamics of abuse in adolescence 
more broadly. Work across the 14 sites also demonstrated the need to contextualise the 
broader safeguarding and child protection systems in which such interventions and 
resources were embedded. The interventions/resources developed during site-work were 
largely applied within child protection systems that, more broadly, remained focused on 
safeguarding young people from risks within their families. This limited the reach of 
contextual interventions in participating sites and the extent to which they could be viewed 
as safeguarding, as opposed to crime-reduction, practices. In order to maximise their impact 
contextual interventions needed to be embedded within a Contextual Safeguarding system. 

When reflecting on the type of system that would be required to maximise the impact of the 
contextual interventions designed during site work I identified four domains of a Contextual 
Safeguarding system. A safeguarding and child protection system would be contextual if it: 

1. Was designed to identify, assess and intervene with the social conditions of abuse 
(i.e. targeted the nature of the contexts in which abuse occurred rather than just the 
individuals affected by it); 

75



6 THE INTERNATIONAL CENTRE  

2. Drew extra-familial contexts into child protection and safeguarding processes (which 
were traditionally focused on families) 

3. Built partnerships with sectors and individuals who managed extra-familial settings 
where young people spent their time (such as those responsible for the management 
of schools, transport services, shopping centres, libraries, take-away shops), and; 

4. Measured its impact in relation to a change in the nature of the contexts where young 
people were vulnerable to abuse or harm (rather than just focusing on a change in 
the behaviour of individuals who continued to spend time in harmful spaces). 

 

Figure 4 Four Domains of Contextual Safeguarding (Firmin et al., 2016:46-49) 
 
 
 
These four domains provide the foundations for a systemic change in the way that services 
describe, and respond to, abuse in adolescence. 

 

Contextual Safeguarding and child protection systems 
 
The child protection system, and the legislative and policy framework which underpins it, 
was designed to protect children and young people from risks posed by their families and/or 
situations where families had reduced capacity to safeguard those in their care. As noted 
throughout in this briefing, extra-familial risks can reduce/undermine the capacity of 
families/carers to safeguard young people – and to this extent extra-familial risks are 
accommodated by existing approaches. However, in traditional systems this dynamic would 
be addressed by intervening with families to increase their capacity to safeguard young 
people from harm and/or relocating young people away from harmful contexts. 

A Contextual Safeguarding system supports the development of approaches which 
disrupt/change harmful extra-familial contexts rather than move families/young people away 
from them. While parents/carers are not in a position to change the nature of extra-familial 
contexts those who manage or deliver services in these spaces are; and they therefore 
become critical partners in the safeguarding agenda. This approach would extend the 
concept of ‘capacity to safeguard’ beyond families to those individuals and sectors who 
manage extra-familial settings in which young people encounter risk. Whose capacity to 

Domain 1: Target 
Seeks to prevent, 

identify, assess and 
intervene with the 

social conditions of 
abuse 

Domain 2: Legislative 
framework 

Incorporate extra- 
familial contexts into 

child protection 
frameworks 

Domain 3: Partnerships 
Develop partnerships 

with sectors/individuals 
who are responsible for 

the nature of extra- 
familial contexts 

Domain 4: Outcomes 
measurement 

Monitor outcomes of 
success in relation to 
contextual, as well as 

individual, change 

76



7 THE INTERNATIONAL CENTRE  

safeguard is undermined when a child is exploited at school, on a bus or in their local 
shopping centre – who can contribute to creating safety in these contexts? Such an 
extension of the term ‘capacity to safeguard’ is likely to have implications for child 
protection and safeguarding processes and structures, raising a number of 
questions: 

• To what extent can existing systems receive referrals about peer groups or extra- 
familial contexts in which young people encounter significant harm? 

• How can the nature of extra-familial contexts and peer relationships (and their impact 
on parental capacity to safeguard) be built into child and family assessments? 

• What are the screening and reviewing structures for processing such referrals 
through a child protection system? 

• What are the terms of reference, and partnership roles, for strategy and planning 
meetings to discuss concerns related to contexts as opposed to families? 

• What are the oversight arrangements for an intervention plan related to an extra- 
familial context that may be attached to multiple children and families? 

Returning to the case example of Dean introduced earlier in this briefing. In the current 
system it would be Dean and his family who would be referred, assessed and receive 
intervention to address his behaviour. In a Contextual Safeguarding system extra-familial 
settings and relationships could be subject to this process; so the take-away shop, street 
gang and/or Dean’s peer group may be referred into a safeguarding system, assessed, 
discussed by a partnership and then to subject to an intervention as a means of keeping 
Dean safe. 

In addition to the site work that we have undertaken, a number of organisations in the UK 
and internationally have developed interventions that could be used to disrupt risk in 
shopping centres, take away shops, peer groups, schools, parks and other public settings. A 
Contextual Safeguarding practitioners’ network is collecting, and sharing, examples of such 
interventions (www.contextualsafegaurding.org.uk). A child protection, social care or 
safeguarding system with the capacity to generate (and assess) contextual referrals into 
such interventions (and answer the questions outlined above) is in development. The 
London Borough of Hackney received social care innovation funding to embed Contextual 
Safeguarding within its social care and safeguarding systems over a two year period from 
2017. A number of other local authorities are working alongside them to scale the learning 
from this process into their safeguarding systems and continue to advance this approach. 

 

Conclusion 
 
This briefing has outlined the process through which Contextual Safeguarding has been built 
as a framework for advancing practical, strategic and conceptual models for safeguarding 
adolescents. In summary, Contextual Safeguarding provides a framework against which to 
design safeguarding systems that the address extra-familial risk. In doing so it: 

• Recognises the weight of peer influence on the decisions that young people make 
• Extends the notion of ‘capacity to safeguard’ to sectors that operate beyond families 
• Provides a framework in which referrals can be made for contextual interventions 

that, when delivered effectively, can complement work with individuals and families 

Going forward, the Contextual Safeguarding team at the University of Bedfordshire will use 
the learning from Hackney to identify the principles of practice for a Contextual Safeguarding 
system and co-create resources with practitioners which aid the delivery of such an 
approach. These will be used to scale-up Contextual Safeguarding systems into other parts 
of the country and, along with the learning being generated in the Contextual Safeguarding 
Practitioners’ Network, will enhance responses to safeguarding adolescents nationally and 
internationally. 

77

http://www.contextualsafegaurding.org.uk/


8 THE INTERNATIONAL CENTRE  

To join the Contextual Safeguarding Network please visit: 
www.contextualsafeguarding.org.uk 

 
 

References 
 

i  Firmin, 2017a; Firmin, 2015 
ii  Firmin, et al., 2016b 
iii  Firmin, et al., 2016a; Firmin, et al., 2016b; Firmin, 2017a; Firmin, 2017b; Lloyd et al., 2917; 

Firmin & Hancock, Forthcoming, 2018 
iv  Coleman, 2011; Hanson & Holmes, 2015; Sidebotham, et al., 2016 
v  Barter, et al., 2009; Firmin, 2017b; Warr, 2002 
vi Barter, et al., 2009; Catch 22, 2013; Centre for Social Justice , 2016; Cowie , et al., 2008 ; 

Firmin, 2017a; Letourneau & Borduin, 2008; Ringrose, et al., 2011; Smallbone, et al., 
2013; Transport Select Committee, 2014; Women and Equalities Committee, 2016 
vii  Firmin, 2015; Firmin, 2017a 
viii Firmin, 2017a; Firmin, 2017b 
ix  Firmin, et al., 2016b 
x   Lloyd, et al., 2017 
xi  Firmin, et al., 2016b 
xii  Lloyd, et al., 2017 
xiii  Catch 22, 2013; Hackett, 2014; Hanson & Holmes, 2015 

78

http://www.contextualsafeguarding.org.uk/


9 THE INTERNATIONAL CENTRE  

 
 
 
 

Works Cited 
 
Barter, C., McCarry, M., Berridge, D. & Evans, K., 2009. Partner Exploitation and Violence in 
Teenage Intimate Relationships, London: NSPCC. 

Catch 22, 2013. The role of the family in facilitating gang membership, criminality and exit, 
London: Catch 22. 

Centre for Social Justice , 2016. Bullying and Self-Exclusion: Who Cares?, London: CSJ. 

Coleman, J., 2011. The Nature of Adolescence, 4th Edition. Howe, East Sussex: Routledge. 

Cowie , H., Hutson, N. & Jennifer, D., 2008 . Taking Stock of Violence in U.K. Schools: Risk, 
Regulation, and Responsibility. Education and Urban Society , 40(4), pp. 494-505 . 

Firmin, C. 2013. Something Old or Something New: Do Pre-Existing Conceptualisations of 
Abuse Enabe a Sufficient Response to Abuse in Young People's Relationships and Peer 
Groups? In M. Melrose, & J. Pearce, Critical Perspectives on Child Sexual Exploitation and 
Related Trafficking (pp. 38-51). Hampshire: Palgrave Macmillan. 

Firmin, C., 2015. Peer on Peer Abuse: Safeguarding Implications of Contextualising Abuse 
between Young People within Social Fields, Luton: University of Bedfordshire. 

Firmin, C., 2017a. Contextual Risk, Individualised Responses: An Assessment of 
Safeguarding Responses to Nine Cases of Peer-on-Peer Abuse. Child Abuse Review. 

Firmin, C., 2017b. From genograms to peer group mapping: Introducing peer relationships 
into social work assessment and intervention. Families, Relationships and Societies. 

Firmin, C. et al., 2016b. Towards a Contextual Response to Peer-on-Peer Abuse, Luton: 
University of Bedfordshire. 

Firmin, C. & Hancock, D., Forthcoming, 2018. Profiling CSE: Building a Contextual Picture of 
a Local Problem. In: H. Beckett & J. Pearce, eds. Understanding and Responding to Child 
Sexual Exploitation. Abingdon: Routledge, pp. 107-120. 

Firmin, C., Warrrington, C. & Pearce, J., 2016a. Sexual Exploitation and Its Impact on 
Developing Sexualities and Sexual Relationships: The Need for Contextual Social Work 
Interventions. British Journal of Social Work, 46(8), pp. 2318-2337. 

Hackett, S., 2014. Children and young people with harmful sexual behaviours. Dartington: 
Research in Practice. 

Hanson, E. & Holmes, D., 2015. The Difficult Age: Developing a more effective response to 
risk in adolescence , Darlington : Research in Practice. 

House of Commons Education Committee, 2012. Children first: the child protection system 
in England, London: The Stationary Office. 

79



10 THE INTERNATIONAL CENTRE  

 
 
Latchford, L., Firmin, C., Fritz , D. & Hackett, S., 2016. Young people who sexually harm 
peers in groups: A rapid evidence assessment of international literature, Luton: University of 
Bedfordshire. 

Letourneau, E. & Borduin, C., 2008. The Effective Treatment of Juveniles Who Sexually 
Offend: An ethical imperative. Ethics and Behavior, 18(2-3), pp. 286-306. 

Lloyd, J., Fritz, D. & Firmin, C., 2017. Contextual Safeguarding Audit Toolkit. [Online] 
Available at: www.contextualsafeguarding.org.uk/audittoolkit 
[Accessed 01. 04. 2017]. 

Office of National Statistics, 2013. Crime in England and Wales, Year Ending March 2013. 
[Online] 
Available at: http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/rel/crime-stats/crime-statistics/period-ending-march- 
2013/stb-crime--period-ending-march-2013.html#tab-Crime-experienced-by-children-aged- 
10-to-15 
[Accessed 03. 12. 2015]. 

Ofsted, 2011. Ages of concern: learning lessons from serious case reviews, London: Ofsted. 

Ringrose, J., Gill, R., Livingstone, S. & Harvey, L., 2011. A Qualitative Study of Children, 
Young People and 'Sexting', London: NSPCC. 

Sidebotham, P. et al., 2016. Pathways to harm, pathways to protection: a triennial analysis 
of serious case reviews 2011 to 2014: Final report, London: DfE. 

Smallbone, S., Rayment-Mchuhgh, S. & Smith, D., 2013. Youth Sexual Offending: Context, 
Good ENough Lives, and ENgaging with a Wider Prevention Agenda. International Journal 
of Behavioral Consultation and Therapy, 8(3-4), pp. 49-54. 

Transport Select Committee, 2014. Security on the Railways, London: The Stationary Office. 

Warr, M., 2002. Companions in crime: The social aspects of criminal conduct. Cambridge: 
Cambridge University Press. 

Women and Equalities Committee, 2016. Sexual harassment and sexual violence in 
schools, London: Parliamentary Copyright . 

80

http://www.contextualsafeguarding.org.uk/audittoolkit
http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/rel/crime-stats/crime-statistics/period-ending-march-


11 THE INTERNATIONAL CENTRE  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Copyright © University of Bedfordshire and Carlene Firmin 
Website:  www.beds.ac.uk/ic 
Twitter: @uniofbedsCSE 
For further information please contact carlene.firmin@beds.ac.uk 

81

http://www.beds.ac.uk/ic
mailto:carlene.firmin@beds.ac.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

82



CHILDREN AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM No. 9

14 MARCH 2019 PUBLIC REPORT

Report of: Director of Law and Governance 
Contact Officer(s): Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services Officer Tel. 01733 452508

MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM: Director of Law and Governance Deadline date: N/A

     It is recommended that the Children and Education  Scrutiny Committee:

1. Considers the responses from Cabinet Members and Officers to recommendations made at 
previous meetings as attached in Appendix 1 to the report and provides feedback including 
whether further monitoring of each recommendation is required.

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT

1.1 The Children and Education Scrutiny Committee agreed at a meeting held on 3 July 2017 that a 
report be provided at each meeting to note the outcome of any recommendations made at the 
previous meeting held thereby providing an opportunity for the Committee to request further 
monitoring of the recommendation should this be required.

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1 The report enables the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee to monitor and
track progress of recommendations made to the Executive or Officers at previous meetings.

2.2 This report is for the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee to consider under its Terms of 
Reference No. Part 3, Section 4 - Overview and Scrutiny Functions, paragraph 3.3:

The Scrutiny Committees will:

(a) Review and scrutinise the Executive, Committee and officer decisions and 
performance in connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions;

(b) Review and scrutinise the Council’s performance in meeting the aims of its policies 
and performance targets and/or particular service areas;

(c) Question Members of the Executive, Committees and senior officers about their 
decisions and performance of the Council, both generally and in relation to 
particular decisions or projects;

(d) Make recommendations to the Executive and the Council as a result of the scrutiny 
process.

83



3. TIMESCALES 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting 

N/A

4. BACKGROUND 

4.1

4.2

Appendix 1 of the report sets out the recommendations made to Cabinet Members or Officers at 
previous meetings of the Scrutiny Committee.   It also contains summaries of any action taken by 
Cabinet Members or Officers in response to the recommendations.

The progress status for each recommendation is indicated and if the Scrutiny Committee confirms 
acceptance of the items marked as completed they will be removed from the list.  In cases where 
action on the recommendation is outstanding or the Committee does not accept the matter has 
been adequately completed it will be kept on the list and reported back to the next meeting of the 
Committee.  It will remain on the list until such time as the Committee accepts the 
recommendation as completed.  

5. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT

5.1 Timelier monitoring of recommendations made will assist the Scrutiny Committee in assessing 
the impact and consequence of the recommendations.

6. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION

6.1 To assist the Committee in assessing the impact and consequence of recommendations made 
at previous meetings.

7. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

7.1 Minutes of the Children and Education Scrutiny meeting held on 1 November 2018 and 3 January 
2019.

8. APPENDICES

8.1 Appendix 1 –  Recommendation Monitoring Report 

84



RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING REPORT 2018 – 2019 Appendix 1

CHILDREN AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Meeting date 
Recommendations 
Made

Portfolio Holder / 
Directorate 
Responsible

Agenda Item Title Recommendation Made Action Taken Progress Status

1 November 2018 Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills and 
University / Director 
of Education

Education Review 
Monitoring Report

RECOMMENDATION

The Children and Education 
Scrutiny Committee 
RESOLVED to recommend that 
the Director of Education 
provide the Committee with a 
report to their September 2019 
meeting providing the 
unvalidated examination data 
for Key Stages 1, 2, 4 and 5 from 
all schools across the city.

Report to be provided at 
the September 2019 
meeting of the 
Committee.

Ongoing

3 January 2019 Director of Law and 
Governance

Monitoring of Scrutiny 
Recommendations 
report

The Children and Education 
Scrutiny Committee also 
agreed that:

1. The report due at the 
September 2019 meeting in 
respect of the unvalidated 
examination data for Key 
Stages 1, 2, 4 and 5 from all 
schools across the City 
should also include rural 
schools.

The Service Director, 
Education to note the 
additional request to the 
original recommendation 
made at the 1 November 
2018 meeting of the 
Committee.

Ongoing

85



T
his page is intentionally left blank

86



CHILDREN AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM No. 10

14 MARCH 2019 PUBLIC REPORT

Report of: Director of Law and Governance 
Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cabinet Member for Resources

Contact Officer(s): Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services Officer Tel. 01733 452508

FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM: Senior Democratic Services Officer Deadline date: N/A

     It is recommended that the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee:

1. Considers the current Forward Plan of Executive Decisions and identifies any relevant items for 
inclusion within their work programme or request further information.

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT

1.1 The report is presented to the Committee in accordance with the Terms of Reference as set out 
in section 2.2 of the report.

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1 This is a regular report to the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee outlining the content 
of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

2.2 This report is for the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee to consider under its Terms of 
Reference No. Part 3, Section 4 - Overview and Scrutiny Functions, paragraph 3.3:

The Scrutiny Committees will:

(f)  Hold the Executive to account for the discharge of functions in the following ways:

ii) By scrutinising Key Decisions which the Executive is planning to take, as set out in 
the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions;

3. TIMESCALES 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting 

N/A

4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

4.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions is attached at Appendix 1. The 

87



4.2

4.3

4.4

Forward Plan contains those Executive Decisions which the Leader of the Council believes that 
the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new key decisions to be taken 
after 1 April 2019.

The information in the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions provides the Committee with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these executive decisions, 
or to request further information.

If the Committee wished to examine any of the executive decisions, consideration would need to 
be given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme.

As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after 
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting.

5. CONSULTATION

5.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions.

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT

6.1 After consideration of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions the Committee may request 
further information on any Executive Decision that falls within the remit of the Committee.

7. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION

7.1 The report presented allows the Committee to fulfil the requirement to scrutinise Key Decisions 
which the Executive is planning to take, as set out in the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions in 
accordance with their terms of reference as set out in Part 3, Section 4 - Overview and Scrutiny 
Functions, paragraph 3.3.

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 N/A

9. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

9.1 N/A

Legal Implications

9.2 N/A

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

10.1 None

11. APPENDICES

11.1 Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

88



PETERBOROUGH CITY 
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 
OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 

PUBLISHED: 1 MARCH 2019

89



FORWARD PLAN

PART 1 – KEY DECISIONS
In the period commencing 28 clear days after the date of publication of this Plan, Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set out 
below in Part 1.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 and/or have a 
significant impact on two or more wards in Peterborough.

If the decision is to be taken by an individual Cabinet Member, the name of the Cabinet Member is shown against the decision, in addition to details of the Councillor’s portfolio. 
If the decision is to be taken by the Cabinet, this too is shown against the decision and its members are as listed below:
Cllr Holdich (Leader); Cllr Fitzgerald (Deputy Leader); Cllr Ayres; Cllr Cereste; Cllr Hiller, Cllr Lamb; Cllr Smith; Cllr Seaton and Cllr Walsh.

This Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions for the forthcoming month and it will be updated on a fortnightly basis to reflect new key-decisions.  Each new 
Plan supersedes the previous Plan and items may be carried over into forthcoming
g Plans.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form which appears at the back of the Plan and submitted to 
philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk,  Democratic and Constitutional Services Manager, Legal and Governance Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 
388039). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to or by telephone on 01733 452460. For each decision a public report will be available from the Democratic 
Services Team one week before the decision is taken.

PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISION IN PRIVATE
Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the Cabinet meetings listed in this Plan will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will be some 
business to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information.  In these circumstances the meeting may be held in private, 
and on the rare occasion this applies, notice will be given within Part 2 of this document, ‘notice of intention to hold meeting in private’. A further formal notice of the intention to 
hold the meeting, or part of it, in private, will also be given 28 clear days in advance of any private meeting in accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed (unless a notice of intention to hold the meeting in private 
has been given).

PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS
For complete transparency relating to the work of the Executive, this Plan also includes an overview of non-key decisions to be taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Members, these decisions are listed at Part 3 and will be updated on a weekly basis.

You are entitled to view any documents listed on the Plan, or obtain extracts from any documents listed or subsequently submitted to the decision maker prior to the decision 
being made, subject to any restrictions on disclosure. There is no charge for viewing the documents, although charges may be made for photocopying or postage.  Documents 
listed on the notice and relevant documents subsequently being submitted can be requested from Philippa Turvey, Democratic and Constitutional Services Manager, Legal and 
Governance Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388038), e-mail to philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452460. 

All decisions will be posted on the Council's website: www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedeisions. If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key 
decisions' outlined in this Plan, please submit them to the Democratic and Constitutional Services Manager using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for 
the Council's various service departments are incorporated within this Plan.

90

mailto:philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedeisions


PART 1 – FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

KEY DECISIONS FROM 1 APRIL 2019

KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO 
THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO 
THE DECISION 
MAKER 
INCLUDING 
EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

Recommissioning of the 
Unpaid Carers Contract – 
KEY/01APR19/01

The procurement of the 
unpaid carers service in 
collaboration with
Cambridgeshire County 
Council and Cambridgeshire 
and
Peterborough Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) 
for the unpaid
carers service across 
Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough.

Councillor 
Fitzgerald, 
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health

August 
2019

Adults and 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All Wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Lee McManus, 
Commissioner, 
Cambridgeshire 
County Council & 
Peterborough City 
Council. 
Tel: 07785 721092. 
Email: 
lee.mcmanus@ca
mbridgeshire.gov.u
k

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other 
than the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

The decision will 
include an exempt 
annexe. By virtue 
of paragraph 1, 
Information 
relating to any 
individual

91



PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED KEY DECISIONS

KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO 
THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO 
THE DECISION 
MAKER 
INCLUDING 
EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

1. Affordable Warmth 
Strategy 2019 – 2021  
- KEY/17APR17/03 
Recommendation to 
approve the Affordable 
Warmth Strategy 2019 
– 2021

Councillor Walsh, 
Cabinet Member 
for Communities 

March 
2019

Adults and 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

The draft strategy 
will be placed on 
PCC Consultation 
pages for 3 week 
consultation period

Sharon Malia, 
Housing 
Programmes 
Manager, Tel: 01733 
863764 
sharon.malia@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other 
than the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

BRE Integrated 
Dwelling Level 
Housing Stock 
Modelling Report 
July 2016 Housing 
Renewals Policy 
2017 – 2019

92



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

2. Award of contract for the 
expansion and partial 
remodelling of Ken 
Stimpson Community 
School – KEY/18SEP17/03
The intention is to expand 
the school by 2 forms of 
entry (300 additional pupils 
plus 150 sixth form) to meet 
the growing need for 
secondary school places. A 
new building block is 
planned on the site with an 
extension to the dinning hall 
and minor remodelling to an 
adjacent building. As part of 
the remodelling the on site 
library will be demolished - 
following its relocation to a 
suitable site close by.

Councillor 
Lynne Ayres, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 
2019

Children and 
Education 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Werrington Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Consultation will 
include: Senior 
School 
Management team, 
Sport England, 
local residents and 
the Department 
For Education

Stuart 
Macdonald, 
Property 
Manager.

Tel: 07715 
802 489. 
Email: 
stuart.macd
onald@pet
erborough.g
ov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

School Organisation Plan 
2015 -2022

93



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

3. Approval of contract for 
the delivery of Lot 1 - 
General Information, 
Advice and Guidance 
Services and Lot 2 - 
Specialist Information, 
Advice and Guidance 
Services – 
KEY/16OCT17/04
Following competitive 
procurement of these 
services, to approve the 
contract to deliver Lot 1 
Generalist Information, 
Advice and Guidance 
Services - Homelessness 
Prevention; and Lot 2 
Specialist Information, 
Advice and Guidance 
Services - supporting 
protected characteristic 
groups.

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 
2019

Adults and 
Communities

All Wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Voluntary sector 
advice agencies 
consulted in 
service design. 
Market testing of 
providers has also 
taken place.

Ian Phillips, 
Senior Policy 
Manager
Tel: 01733 
863849
Email: 
ian.phillips@
peterborough
.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published

94



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

4. ICT Infrastructure works 
for Fletton Quays – 
KEY/13NOV17/02
To agree to the 
procurement of ICT 
infrastructure works for 
Fletton Quays

 

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
& Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee
 

N/A Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Peter 
Carpenter,
Acting 
Corporate 
Director, 
Resources
Tel: 01733 
384564
Email: 
Peter.carpent
er@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.
The decision will include 
an exempt annexe. By 
virtue of paragraph 3, 
information relating to the 
financial or business 
affairs of any particular 
person (including the 
authority holding that 
information). 

95



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

5. Expansion and 
Remodelling of 
Marshfields School – 
KEY/11DEC17/03
To approve the proposed 
expansion and remodelling 
of Marshfields school

Councillor 
Lynne Ayres, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 
2019

Children and 
Education 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Dogsthorp
e Ward

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Public 
Consultation 
Meeting

Sharon 
Bishop, 
Capital 
Projects & 
Assets 
Officer 
Tel: 01733 
863997
Email: 
Sharon.bisho
p@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

School Organisational 
Plan

96

mailto:Sharon.bishop@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:Sharon.bishop@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:Sharon.bishop@peterborough.gov.uk


DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

6. A605 Whittlesey Access 
Phase 2 - Stanground 
Access - KEY/25DEC17/03
To approve the design and 
construction of the A605 
Stanground East Junction 
Improvements for the 
financial year of 2017/18 - 
2018-19 and authorise the 
associated package of work 
to be issued to Skanska 
Construction UK Limited 
under the Council’s existing 
agreement with SKANSKA 
dated 18th September 2013 
(the Highways Services 
Agreement).

Councillor 
Hiller, Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Stanground 
South

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

The scheme is 
included in the 
fourth Local 
Transport Plan. 
Further 
consultation will be 
undertaken during 
the design 
process, including 
ward Councillors.

Lewis Banks, 
Principal 
Sustainable 
Transport 
Planning 
Officer. 

Tel: 01733 
317465, Email: 
lewis.banks@
peterborough.
gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

Fourth Local Transport 
Plan: 
www.peterborough.gov
.uk/ltp
National Productivity 
Investment Fund for 
the Local Road 
Network Application 
Form: 
https://www.peterborou
gh.gov.uk/upload/www.
peterborough.gov.uk/re
sidents/transport-and-
streets/A605Applicatio
n.pdf?inline=true

97

https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/upload/www.peterborough.gov.uk/residents/transport-and-streets/A605Application.pdf?inline=true
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/upload/www.peterborough.gov.uk/residents/transport-and-streets/A605Application.pdf?inline=true
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/upload/www.peterborough.gov.uk/residents/transport-and-streets/A605Application.pdf?inline=true
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/upload/www.peterborough.gov.uk/residents/transport-and-streets/A605Application.pdf?inline=true
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/upload/www.peterborough.gov.uk/residents/transport-and-streets/A605Application.pdf?inline=true
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/upload/www.peterborough.gov.uk/residents/transport-and-streets/A605Application.pdf?inline=true


DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

7. Approval of funding 
allocation for the 
improvement to open 
spaces in the CAN Do 
area of the city as part of 
the capital regeneration 
programme for the area -
KEY/25DEC17/04
Improvement to open 
spaces in the CAN Do area 
of the city as part of the 
capital regeneration 
programme for the area

Councillor 
Cereste, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Waste and 
Street Scene

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Central, 
North & 
Park 
wards

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Community 
engagement with 
local residents, 
businesses & 
partner 
organisations

Charlotte 
Palmer

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

Budget allocation in MTFP 
2017/18

8. Approval of funding 
allocation for community 
facility improvements in 
the CAN Do area of the 
city as part of the capital 
Regeneration Programme 
for the area - 
KEY/25DEC17/05
Community facility 
improvements in the CAN 
Do area of the city as part 
of the capital Regeneration 
Programme for the area

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Central, 
North & 
Park 
wards

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Community 
engagement with 
residents, groups, 
businesses and 
partner 
organisations

Cate 
Harding, 
Community 
Capacity 
Manager. 
Tel: 01733 
317497. 
Email: 
cate.harding
@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

Budget allocation of £4m 
in MTFP 2017/8

98



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

9. Approval of funding 
allocation for the public 
realm improvements 
within the CAN Do area of 
the city as part of the 
capital regeneration 
programme for the area - 
KEY/25DEC17/06
public realm improvements 
within the CAN Do area

Councillor 
Hiller, Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Central, 
North & 
Park 
wards

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Community 
engagement with 
local residents, 
groups, businesses 
and partner 
agencies

Charlotte 
Palmer

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

Budget allocation £3m in 
MTFP 2017/18

10. Extension to the Section 
75 Agreement for 
Learning Disabilities 
Services - 
KEY/30APRIL18/01
Extension of the existing 
staff and commissioned 
arrangements for a period 
of 12 months

Councillor 
Fitzgerald, 
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health

March 
2019

Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All wards Consultation with 
key stakeholders to 
agree this interim 
approach

Cris Green 
Tel: 01733 
207164
Email: 
cris.green@p
eterborough.
gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

99

mailto:cris.green@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:cris.green@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:cris.green@peterborough.gov.uk


DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

11. Approval for contract to 
be awarded to Skanska to 
deliver widening of the 
A605 Oundle Road 
between Alwalton and 
Lynch Wood Business 
Park - KEY/11JUN18/03
Approval for contract to be 
awarded to Skanska to 
deliver widening of the 
A605 Oundle Road 
between Alwalton and 
Lynch Wood Business 
Park. The council has 
received funding (£720k) 
from the Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough 
Combined Authority to 
deliver the scheme. In 
addition the council has 
also allocated internal 
funding (£773k) towards the 
scheme.

Councillor 
Hiller, Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Orton 
Waterville

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Consultation will 
take place once 
the scheme design 
is completed. This 
is expected to be 
later this summer.

Lewis Banks, 
Principal 
Sustainable 
Transport 
Planning 
Officer. 

Tel: 01733 
317465, 
Email: 
lewis.banks
@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Combined 
Authority meeting notes 
confirming grant funding 
allocation. Also CMDN for 
award of contract to 
Skanska for provision of 
Professional Services 
under Peterborough 
Highway Services 
partnership.

100



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

12. Disposal of freehold in 
Centre of the City -  
KEY/12JUN18/01 To 
delegate authority to the 
Corporate Director of 
Growth and Regeneration 
to sell the property

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Central Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Peter 
Carpenter,
Acting 
Corporate 
Director, 
Resources
Tel: 01733 
384564
Email: 
Peter.carpent
er@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

The decision will 
include an exempt 
annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, 
information relating to 
the financial or business 
affairs of any particular 
person (including the 
authority holding that 
information).

101

mailto:Peter.carpenter@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.carpenter@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.carpenter@peterborough.gov.uk


DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

13. To approve the awarding 
of contracts to external 
providers following a 
competitive tender 
exercise led by 
Cambridgeshire County 
Council. - 
KEY/25JUNE18/02 
Cambridgeshire County has 
recently conducted a 
tendering exercise to 
establish a Dynamic 
Purchasing System for the 
provision Supported Living 
Services for Adults with a 
Learning Disability 
(Reference number: 
DN311905). Peterborough 
City Council is the named 
authority under this 
arrangement and would 
want to commission care 
and support packages (call-
off).

Councillor 
Fitzgerald, 
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health

March 
2019

Adults and 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All Wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Relevant 
consultations has 
been carried out 
with the service 
users, family 
carers, Health 
colleagues and 
care and support 
providers across 
Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough.

Mubarak 
Darbar, Head 
of Integrated 
Commissioni
ng,  Tel: 
0771865420
7, 
Email: 
mubarak.dar
bar@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

102



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

14. IT Strategy – 
KEY/3SEP18/01
Approval of an IT Strategy 
and associated investment 
for the 2019 to 2022 time 
period

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

N/A Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Peter 
Carpenter,
Acting 
Corporate 
Director, 
Resources
Tel: 01733 
384564
Email: 
Peter.carpent
er@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

IT Improvement Plan 
23/07/18. There will be 
the possibility of an 
exempt annex if the report 
contains commercial 
information.

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

103

mailto:Peter.carpenter@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.carpenter@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.carpenter@peterborough.gov.uk


DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

15. University Delivery 
Vehicle – KEY/3SEP18/02
Approval and setting up of 
an appropriate delivery 
vehicle with University 
project partners to move 
council assets to enable the 
deliver of the university.

Councillor 
Lynne Ayres, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Central Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Peter 
Carpenter,
Acting 
Corporate 
Director, 
Resources
Tel: 01733 
384564
Email: 
Peter.carpent
er@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

The decision will 
include an exempt 
annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, 
information relating to 
the financial or business 
affairs of any particular 
person (including the 
authority holding that 
information).

104

mailto:Peter.carpenter@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.carpenter@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.carpenter@peterborough.gov.uk


DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

16. Approval of funding for 
the provision of 
accommodation to reduce 
homelessness – 
KEY/17SEP18/02
Following Cabinet Decision 
JAN18/CAB/18 this is a 
new project to increase the 
supply of housing and 
address the demand for 
accommodation resulting 
from the increase in 
homelessness

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All wards The issues 
associated with 
homelessness in 
Peterborough have 
been subject to 
significant 
discussion in 
various forums, 
including the 
Council's Adults 
and Communities 
Scrutiny, Cabinet 
and Full Council

Adrian 
Chapman, 
Service 
Director for 
Communities 
and Safety.  
adrian.chap
man@peterb
orough.gov.u
k

carole.coe@
peterborough
.gov.uk

The decision will 
include an exempt 
annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, 
information relating to 
the financial or business 
affairs of any particular 
person (including the 
authority holding that 
information).

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

105



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

17. Award of Dynamic 
Purchasing System for 
external placements for 
looked after children 
and/or those with an 
Education, Health and 
Care Plan [EHCP] – 
KEY/12NOV18/04 
As per above, for: 
Independent Fostering 
Agencies, Residential 
Children's Homes, 
Residential [non-
maintained] Special 
Schools and Out of School 
Tuition. This is a joint 
commissioning activity with 
CCC pan CCC and PCC.

Councillor 
Smith, Cabinet 
Member for 
Children’s 
Services

March 
2019

Children and 
Education 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All Wards None planned Helene Carr - 
Head of 
Children's 
Commissioni
ng, 
helene.carr@
peterborough
.gov.uk. 
0790490903
9

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

106



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

18. Amendment to Loan 
Facility – 
KEY/12NOV18/05  
A loan facility previously 
approved by Cabinet 
requires approval of an 
amendment to that facility

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All Wards Detail consultation 
was undertaken in 
the original 
decision to offer 
the loan facility.

Peter 
Carpenter, 
Acting 
Corporate 
Director 
Resources 
01733 
384564 email 
peter.carpent
er@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

The decision will 
include an exempt 
annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, 
information relating to 
the financial or business 
affairs of any particular 
person (including the 
authority holding that 
information).

107



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

19. Adoption of the “Dynamic 
Purchasing System” 
(DPS) procedure for 
Public Health contracts 
with Primary Care 
providers – 
KEY/10DEC18/01 
To seek the approval  to 
adopt the “Dynamic 
Purchasing System” (DPS) 
procedure for contracts with 
Primary Care providers for 
the duration of up  to five 
years. The proposals have 
been approved by the 
Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Joint 
Commissioning Board.

Councillor 
Lamb, Cabinet 
Member for 
Public Health

March 
2019

Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All Wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Claire-Adele 
Mead
Commissioni
ng Team 
Manager-
Primary care 
and 
Lifestyles
Claire-
Adele.Mead
@cambridge
shire.gov.uk
07884 
250909

Val Thomas, 
Consultant in 
Public Health
Val.Thomas
@cambridge
shire.gov.uk
01223 
703264/ 
07884 
183374

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

108



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

20. Recommendation to 
approve the Local 
Transport Plan 
programme of capital 
works for 2019/20 - 
2021/22 – 
KEY/24DEC18/01
The Council expects to be 
allocated a total transport 
settlement of £4,193k per 
year between 2019/20 – 
2021/22 comprising of 
£1,407k Integrated 
Transport Block Grant and 
£2,786k Capital 
Maintenance Block Grant, 
although this funding has 
been devolved to the 
Combined Authority by 
Government.

Councillor 
Hiller, Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Appropriate 
consultation will be 
undertaken on 
individual schemes 
in the programme 
as required. A 
briefing note will be 
prepared for the 
Growth, 
Environment and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Lewis Banks, 
Principal 
Sustainable 
Transport 
Planning 
Officer, 
01733 
317465, 
lewis.banks
@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

109



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

21. Interim integrated 
Contraception and Sexual 
Health service awarded to 
Cambridgeshire 
Community Services – 
KEY/24DEC18/04 
The Cabinet Member is 
recommended to award an 
interim contract for the 
delivery of an Integrated 
Contraception and Sexual 
Health services (iCaSH) 
within Peterborough to 
Cambridgeshire Community 
Services (CCS) for a value 
of £1,167,524.25. This is in 
order to allow sufficient time 
for the transformational 
recommissioning of sexual 
and reproductive health 
services collaboratively 
between Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough local 
authorities, Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough CCG and 
NHS England.

Councillor 
Lamb, Cabinet 
Member for 
Public Health

March 
2019

Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Charlene 
Elliott, 
Sexual 
Health 
Commission
er for 
Cambridgesh
ire and 
Peterboroug
h, 01733 
863603, 
charlene.ellio
tt@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

110



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

22. Enhanced highway patch 
repair funding – 
KEY/24DEC18/05 
An additional £500k p.a. of 
capital funding is to be 
spent on enhanced patch 
repairs on the highway 
network from 1 April 2019 
for 5 years. This is in lieu of 
a revenue reduction of 
£520k p.a.

Councillor 
Hiller, Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Consultation was 
undertaken as part 
of the budget 
setting process. 
Relevant 
consultation will 
occur on a scheme 
by scheme basis.

Kevin Ekins, 
Asset and 
Contract 
Performance 
Manager, 
01733 
453448, 
kevin.ekins@
peterborough
.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published

23. Authority to spot-
purchase externally 
commissioned placement 
services for looked after 
children until the 
mobilization of the new 
Dynamic Purchasing 
System – 
KEY/24DEC18/06
 Authority to spot-purchase 
externally commissioned 
placement services for 
looked after children, 
pending the launch of the 
Dynamic Purchasing 
System [DPS] for external 
placements in April 2019.

Councillor 
Smith, Cabinet 
Member for 
Children’s 
Services

March 
2019

Children and 
Education 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Helene Carr, 
Head of 
Children's 
Social Care 
Commissioni
ng - 
Peterboroug
h & 
Cambridgesh
ire, 07904 
909039, 
helene.carr@
peterborough
.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than the 
report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published

111



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO 
THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO 
THE DECISION 
MAKER 
INCLUDING 
EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

24. Bus Operator 
Concessionary Fare 
Reimbursement  - 
KEY/07JAN19/01
Approval is sought for 
spend on reimbursement to 
bus operators for ENCTS 
(English National 
Concessionary Travel 
Scheme) for the financial 
years 2018/19, 2019/20 & 
2020/21

Councillor 
Hiller, Cabinet 
Member For 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing And 
Economic 
Development

31 March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
And 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All Wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Negotiations with 
bus operators will 
be undertaken in 
order to get an 
agreed rate at 
which they will be 
reimbursed.

Andy Bryan, 
Passenger 
Transport Officer, 
Tel: 01733 317458, 
andrew.bryan@pet
erborough.gov.uk
Charlotte Palmer, 
Group Manager - 
Transport & 
Environment, Tel: 
01733 453538, 
charlotte.palmer@
peterborough.gov.
uk

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other 
than the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

The decision will 
include an exempt 
annexe. By virtue 
of paragraph 3, 
information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs of 
any particular 
person (including 
the authority 
holding that 
information).

112



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO 
THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO 
THE DECISION 
MAKER 
INCLUDING 
EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

25. Approval of funding for 
the provision of 
accommodation to reduce 
homelessness - 
KEY/07JAN19/02
Following Cabinet Decision 
JAN18/CAB/18 this is a 
new project to increase the 
supply of housing and 
address the demand for 
accommodation resulting 
from the increase in 
homelessness

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member For 
Resources

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
And 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All Wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

The issues 
associated with 
homelessness in 
Peterborough 
have been 
subject to 
significant 
discussion in 
various forums, 
including the 
Council's Adults 
and Communities 
Scrutiny, Cabinet 
and Full Council

Adrian Chapman, 
Service Director for 
Communities and 
Safety 
Tel 01733 863887 
Email: 
adrian.chapman@
peterborough.gov.
uk

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other 
than the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published. 

The decision will 
include an exempt 
annexe. By virtue 
of paragraph 3, 
information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs of 
any particular 
person (including 
the authority 
holding that 
information).

113



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO 
THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO 
THE DECISION 
MAKER 
INCLUDING 
EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

26. Award of Management 
Consultancy Framework 
agreement to support 
PCC Savings Programme 
– 
KEY/21JAN19/02
Appointment of a 
successful partner to deliver 
the savings programme for 
Peterborough City Council 
and to work in partnership 
with Cambridge County 
Council where appropriate

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All Wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Katherine Hlalat 
Head of Projects, 
Programmes and 
Assurance
katherine.hlalat@p
eterborough.gov.uk

Evaluation outcome 
report

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other 
than the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.114



KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO 
THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO 
THE DECISION 
MAKER 
INCLUDING 
EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

27. Clinical Waste Collections 
- KEY/18FEB19/01 
 
Decision required to 
approve the new collection 
method for domestic sharps 
disposal.

Councillor 
Cereste, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Waste and 
Street Scene

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Amy Nebel, Senior 
Waste and 
Recycling Officer 
amy.nebel@peterb
orough.gov.uk 
01733 864727

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other 
than the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

28. Approval of subletting of 
a Space in Sand Martin 
House, Fletton Quay, 
Peterborough 
KEY/04MAR19/01 – 
Approval is required to the 
Sublease of Space in Sand 
Martin House. This will 
generate £406,440 + VAT 
in rent per annum for the 
Council. The lease is for 
nine years with tenant 
break options in years 3 
and 6.

Councillor 
David Seaton 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Central Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

This transaction 
has been 
discussed with 
Peterborough 
City Council, in 
particular the 
Acting Corporate 
Head of 
Resources. The 
necessary 
stakeholders from 
IT, Facilities and 
soft FM services, 
and Property 
have been 
included in that 
consultation.

Tristram Hill, 
Strategic Asset 
Manager,
Tel:07849 079787 
Email:tristram.hill
@nps.co.uk

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other 
than the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

115



PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISIONS IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN IN PRIVATE 

KEY DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS / 
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO 
THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO 
THE DECISION 
MAKER 

None.

 

116



PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS

NON-KEY DECISIONS

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS / 
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

None.

117



PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS
DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 

MAKER
DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS / 
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

1. Funding of Information, 
Advice and Guidance 
services within the 
voluntary sector - 
To authorise award of 
grants.

Councillor 
David Seaton 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 2019 Growth, 
Environment 
& Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Ian Phillips 
Senior Policy 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Email: 
ian.phillips@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

2. A Lengthmans to be 
deployed on Lincoln 
Road Millfield - 
There will be a daily 
presence along Lincoln 
Road, the operative will 
litter pick, empty bins as 
well as report fly-tips and 
other environmental 
issues.

Councillor 
Cereste, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Waste and 
Street Scene

March 2019 Growth, 
Environment
& Resources
Scrutiny 
Committee

Central 
Ward

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Cross party task 
and finish group 
report which went 
to the Growth, 
Environment and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee and it 
was also approved 
at Full Council as 
part of the 2017-18 
Budget.

James 
Collingridge, Head 
of Environmental 
Partnerships, 
Tel: 01733 864736 
Email: 
james.collingridge
@peterborough.go
v.uk 

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

118



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS / 
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

3. 2017/18 VCS grant 
funding -
Award of grant to VCS 
organisations to provide 
Information, Advice and 
Guidance services

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 2019 Adults and 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips Senior 
Policy Manager 
Tel: 863849 Email: 
ian.phillips@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

4. Inclusion of Investment 
Acquisition Strategy in 
the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) - 
To recommend to Council 
that the Investment 
Acquisition Strategy be 
included in the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy to 
enable the Council to 
acquire investment 
properties

Cabinet 25 March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources

N/A Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Peter Carpenter,
Acting Corporate 
Director, 
Resources
Tel: 01733 384564
Email: 
Peter.carpenter@p
eterborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

119



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATI
ON

CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

5. Grant funding for voluntary 
organisations – 
To provide funding for 
voluntary organisations in 
Peterborough to carry out 
essential support for 
vulnerable people, 
particularly in relation to 
welfare benefits assistance 
and other crisis support. 

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Resources

March 2019 Adults and 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee

N/A Relevant 
internal and 
external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips
Senior Policy 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849 
Email: 
Ian.Phillips@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

6. Approval of Additional 
Powers to the Combined 
Authority (Transfer of 
Powers) - Approve additional 
powers for the Combined 
Authority via a Statutory 
Instrument for Adult Skills 
Commissioning.

Councillor 
Holdich, 
Leader of 
the 
Council 
and 
Member of 
the 
Cambridge
shire and 
Peterborou
gh 
Combined 
Authority

March 2019 Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All All Councils in 
Peterborough 
and 
Cambridgeshir
e have to 
agree to the 
transfer

Peter Carpenter,
Acting Corporate 
Director, Resources
Tel: 01733 384564
Email: 
Peter.carpenter@pe
terborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

Combined Authority 
Statutory Instrument 
Request

120



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

7. Implementation of School 
Transport Policy for 
children aged 4 to 16 years 
– 
Cabinet member to approve 
the implementation of an 
updated School Transport 
Policy for children aged 4 to 
16 years, in line with 
guidance.  Policy outlines the 
Council's duties and how it 
will exercise its 
responsibilities in accordance 
with relevant legislation and 
guidance.  No change to 
current procedures or 
eligibility.

Councillor 
Lynne Ayres, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 
2019

Children and 
Education 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All Wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

28 consultation 
period to 
commence on 12th 
November.  All 
relevant PCC 
teams, schools, 
parents, Family 
Voice, Appeal 
Panel Members, 
transport providers 
Consultation to 
placed on the 
Council website.

Emma Everitt, 
Capital 
Projects and 
Assets Officer, 
01733 863660 
emma.everitt
@Peterboroug
h.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

121



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

8. Implementation of the Post-
16 Transport Partnership 
Policy – Approval to 
implement a new Post-16 
Transport Partnership Policy, 
developed in partnership with 
parental support groups for 
young people with SEN.

Councillor 
Lynne Ayres, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

March  
2019

Children and 
Education 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All Wards Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Policy to be 
developed with 
stakeholders. 
Consultation to 
follow with all 
relevant Council 
teams, schools, 
colleges, parents. 
Consultation to be 
published on the 
Council website

Emma Everitt, 
Capital 
Projects and 
Assets Officer, 
01733 863660 
emma.everitt
@peterboroug
h.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

9. Adoption of the Regulation 
123 List and the 
Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) governance 
policies-
To approve the adoption of 
the revised Regulation 123 
List and the consolidated 
Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) governance 
policies

Cabinet 25 March 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
& Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All Wards Relevant Internal 
and External 
Stakeholders

Policy to be 
developed with 
stakeholders.  
Consultation to 
follow with all 
relevant Council 
teams, schools, 
colleges, parents.  
Consultation to be 
published on the 
Council website

Philip Hylton, 
Senior 
Strategic 
Planning 
Officer, Tel: 
01733 863879, 
Email:philip.hyl
ton@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that 
there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and relevant 
appendices to be 
published.

122



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

10. Decision Request for 
Variation of the 
Woodston Public 
Spaces Protection Order 
- 
Following the outcome of 
public consultation, this 
decision request is to seek 
approval from the Cabinet 
Member to implement the 
proposed changes to the 
order area and conditions 
for the Woodston Public 
Spaces Protection Order

Councillor 
Walsh, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Communities

March 2019 Adults and 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Fletton 
and 
Woodston 
Ward

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ward councillors, 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner, 
Chief Constable 
and general 
public

Laura Kelsey, 
Senior Prevention 
& Enforcement 
Officer 
Tel: 01733 453563 
Email: 
laura.kelsey@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

123



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS / 
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

11. To agree the process of 
awarding community 
grants through the 
Integrated Communities 
Programme – 
Following the successful 
bid to Government, funding 
has been awarded to the 
council via the Integrated 
Communities Strategy.  
One of the funded projects 
will see a communities 
grant programme launched 
that will provide 
opportunities for 
communities to apply for up 
to £20k to deliver projects 
in their neighbourhood.  
The Cabinet Member is 
requested to approve the 
process in which the grants 
programme will be run.

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 2019 Adults and 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee

N/A Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips 
Senior Policy 
Manager
 – 
Tel: 01733 863849
Email: 
ian.phillips@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

124

mailto:ian.phillips@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:ian.phillips@peterborough.gov.uk


DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS / 
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

12. Disposal of former 
Barnack Primary School 
caretaker house - 
Delegate authority to the 
Corporate Director of 
Growth and Regeneration 
to dispose of the property.

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 2019 Growth, 
Environment 
& Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

N\A Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Stuart Macdonald, 
Property Manager.

Tel: 07715 802 
489. Email: 
stuart.macdonald
@peterborough.go
v.uk 

Bill Tilah 
(Bill.Tilah@nps.co.
uk)

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published. 

The decision will 
include an exempt 
annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, 
information relating 
to the financial or 
business affairs of 
any particular 
person (including 
the authority holding 
that information).

125



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS / 
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

13. Adoption of the Flood 
and Water Management 
Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) –
To approve adoption of the 
Flood and Water 
Management SPD subject 
to the Local Plan being 
adopted by Full Council

Cabinet 10 June 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All 
Wards

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

A Public 
Consultation on the 
document took 
place in March 
2018

Richard Whelan, 
Water 
Management 
Engineer, 
richard.whelan@p
eterborough.gov.u
k,  Tel 01733 
453454

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

14. Adoption of the Green 
Infrastructure and 
Biodiversity 
Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) – 
To approve adoption of the 
Green Infrastructure and 
Biodiversity SPD subject to 
the Local Plan being 
adopted by Full Council

Cabinet 10 June 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All 
Wards

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

A public 
Consultation on the 
document took 
place in March 
2018

James Fisher, 
Wildlife Officer, 
james.fisher@pete
rborough.gov.uk  
Tel. 01733 453543

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

15. Adoption of the 
Developer Contributions 
Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) – 
To approve adoption of the 
Developer Contributions 
SPD subject to the Local 
Plan being adopted by Full 
Council

Cabinet 10 June 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All 
Wards

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

A public 
Consultation on the 
document took 
place in March 
2018

Phil Hylton, Senior 
Strategic Planning 
Officer, 
philip.hylton@pete
rborough.gov.uk
Tel. 01733 863879

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published

126



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS / 
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

16. Local Plan for adoption – 
To recommend the Local 
Plan for adoption by Full 
Council

Cabinet 10 June 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All 
Wards

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

This document has 
undergone public 
consultation and 
public examination 
by the Planning 
Inspectorate

Gemma Wildman, 
Principal Strategic 
Planning Officer, 
gemma.wildman@
peterborough.gov.
uk, Tel: 01733 
863824

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published

17. Approval to dispose of a 
property on Cromwell 
Road at a minimum of 
£375,000 and a maximum 
of £475,000 - This property 
was most recently used by 
Youth Services but has 
now become surplus to 
requirements. It has been 
marked for disposal by the 
council in order to generate 
a capital receipt.

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 2019 Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Central 
Ward

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Authority has been 
provided by the 
acting head of 
resources to 
dispose of this 
property. A Cabinet 
Member Decision 
Notice will need to 
be produced once 
heads of terms 
have been agreed 
with a purchaser.

Tristram Hill, 
Strategic Asset 
Manager,  
Tel: 07849 079787 
Email: 
tristram.hill@nps.c
o.uk

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

127



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS / 
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

18. Funding for voluntary 
sector 2019/20 - To 
provide funding to a 
number of voluntary sector 
organisations to provide 
essential support to 
vulnerable clients

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 2019 Adults and 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee

N/A Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips 
Senior Policy 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Email: 
ian.phillips@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

19. Asset Transfer of 
Gladstone Park 
Community Centre - The 
proposed long term lease 
of Gladstone Park 
Community Centre to The 
Thomas Deacon Academy 
Trust

Councillor 
Seaton, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

May 2019 Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

North Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ward Councillors 
for Central, Park 
and North have 
been advised of 
the decision to 
transfer of the 
Community Centre

Caroline Rowan, 
Urban 
Regeneration 
Project Manager, 
Tel: 01733 864095
Email:caroline.row
an@peterborough.
gov.uk 

It is not anticipated 
that there will be any 
documents other than 
the report and 
relevant appendices 
to be published.

128



PART 4 – NOTIFICATION OF KEY DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY PROCEDURES

DECISION TAKEN: DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
TAKEN

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WARD CONSULTATION CONTACT 
DETAILS /  
REPORT 
AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS 
RELEVANT TO THE 
DECISION SUBMITTED 
TO THE DECISION 
MAKER INCLUDING 
EXEMPT APPENDICES 
AND REASONS FOR 
EXEMPTION

Review of Bus Services supported 
by subsidised transport budget to 
ensure efficiency and value for 
money is achieved - 
FEB19/CMDN/90 

The Cabinet Member:
 

1.    Approved changes in timetables 
to the 60s bus services, as set 
out in the report, which, along 
with budget efficiency measures 
and negotiated cost reductions, 
will present the Council an 
annual saving of £150,000.

2.    Approved the development of a 
publicity campaign with local bus 
operators to run during 2019/20 
to encourage the public to use 
local bus services.

3.    Supported the continuation of the 
Cross Party Bus Consultation 
Group in order to review the 
remaining services supported by 
the Council to ensure best value 
is obtained for both the Council 
and the travelling public.

Councillor 
Hiller, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

15 
February 
2019

Growth, 
Environment 
and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee

All 
wards

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

We have 
conducted bus 
passenger 
surveys on the 
buses proposed 
for removal, we 
have held drop in 
sessions for 
people who 
wished to talk 
through the 
proposed 
changes, worked 
with a cross party 
bus consultation 
group on the 
proposals.

Charlotte 
Palmer,Group 
Manager 
Transport & 
Environment 
Email: 
charlotte.palm
er@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk, 
01733 453538

Report to joint budget 
policy forum

129



DIRECTORATE RESPONSIBILITIES

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT Sand Martin House, Bittern Way, Fletton Quays, Peterborough, PE2 8TY  
City Services and Communications (Markets and Street Trading, City Centre Management including Events, Regulatory Services, Parking Services, Vivacity Contract, 
CCTV and Out of Hours Calls, Marketing and Communications, Tourism and Bus Station, Resilience)
Strategic Finance
Internal Audit
Schools Infrastructure (Assets and School Place Planning)
Waste and Energy
Strategic Client Services (Enterprise Peterborough / Vivacity / SERCO including Customer Services, ICT and Business Support)

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENT Sand Martin House, Bittern Way, Fletton Quays, Peterborough, PE2 8TY  
Adult Services and Communities (Adult Social Care Operations, Adult Social Care and Quality Assurance, Adult Social Care Commissioning, Early Help – Adults, 
Children and Families, Housing and Health Improvement, Community and Safety Services, Offender Services)
Children’s Services and Safeguarding (Children’s Social Care Operations, Children’s Social Care Quality Assurance, Safeguarding Boards – Adults and Children’s, Child 
Health, Clare Lodge (Operations), Access to Resources)
Education, People Resources and Corporate Property (Special Educational Needs and Inclusion, School Improvement, City College Peterborough, Pupil Referral Units, 
Schools Infrastructure)
Business Management and Commercial Operations (Commissioning, Recruitment and Retention, Clare Lodge (Commercial), Early Years and Quality Improvement)
Performance and Information (Performance Management, Systems Support Team)

LAW AND GOVERNANCE DEPARTMENT Sand Martin House, Bittern Way, Fletton Quays, Peterborough, PE2 8TY  
Democratic Services (Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG)
Electoral Services (Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG)
Human Resources (Business Relations, HR Policy and Rewards, Training and Development, Occupational Health and Workforce Development)
Information Governance, (Coroner’s Office, Freedom of Information and Data Protection)

GROWTH AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT Sand Martin House, Bittern Way, Fletton Quays, Peterborough, PE2 8TY  
Development and Construction (Development Management, Planning Compliance, Building Control)
Sustainable Growth Strategy (Strategic Planning, Housing Strategy and Affordable Housing, Climate Change and Environment Capital, Natural and Built Environment)
Opportunity Peterborough
Peterborough Highway Services (Network Management, Highways Maintenance, Street Naming and Numbering, Street Lighting, Design and Adoption of Roads, 
Drainage and Flood Risk Management, Transport Policy and Sustainable Transport, Public Transport)
Corporate Property

PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT Sand Martin House, Bittern Way, Fletton Quays, Peterborough, PE2 8TY  
Health Protection, Health Improvements, Healthcare Public Health.

130



THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

131



T
his page is intentionally left blank

132


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Children and Education Scrutiny Committee Meeting Held on 3 January 2019
	5 Peterborough School Organisation Plan 2019 And Education Organisation Plan 2020
	5. Appendix 1 Current Primary Planning Areas
	5. Appendix 2 Current Secondary Planning Area
	5. Appendix 3 Proposed Primary Planning Areas
	5. Appendix 4 Proposed Secondary Planning Areas
	5. Appendix 5 Peterborough School Organisation Plan

	6 Targeted Youth Support Service
	7 The University of Peterborough Update Report
	8 Safeguarding Children And Young People At Risk As A Result Of Being Missing From Home, Education Or Care
	8. Appendix 1 - Contextual-Safeguarding-Briefing
	Contents
	Figures
	Introduction
	Why is context important
	Contextual Safeguarding Framework
	A Contextual Safeguarding system and interventions
	Contextual Safeguarding and child protection systems
	Conclusion
	References


	9 Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations
	9. Appendix 1 - Recommendation Monitoring Report - CESC - 140319

	10 Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
	10. Appendix 1 - Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 1 April 2019


